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(Rs. in lakhs)
SCHEDULE - V Current Year Previous Year
PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity, allowances etc. 5,346.87 5,709.70
Contribution to provident, superannuation and other funds 499.61 495.03
Workmen & staff welfare expenses 296.99 313.10

6,143.47 6,517.83

SCHEDULE - VI
ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

Rent 166.24 155.17
Rates & taxes 29.61 31.81
Insurance 66.54 67.61
Directors’ fee 6.94 8.46
Directors’ remuneration 75.72 77.89
Other miscellaneous and office expenses 1,398.88 1,644.42
Auditors’ remuneration:

Audit fee 12.00 12.00
Certification work 4.53 4.43
Out-of-pocket expenses 1.15 1.76

17.68 18.19
Bad debts written off 491.14 266.70
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts written back (490.52) (223.90)

0.62 42.80
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 128.55 233.41
Loss on sale of raw materials/stores (net) 11.52 11.02
Long Term Investments written off 5,120.59 3.74
Less: Provison for dimunition in value

of investments written back 5,120.59 —

0.46 3.74
Provision for dimunition in value of investments — 580.70
Fixed Assets written off 27.48 6.30

1,930.24 2,881.52

SCHEDULE - VII
SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling & publicity expenses 312.79 278.28
Commission to dealers/convassing agents 544.84 499.21
Freight & cartage (net) 657.50 645.65
Sales tax & octroi 1,003.30 982.40
Cash discount on sales 296.53 351.68

2,814.96 2,757.22

SCHEDULE - VIII
INTEREST AND FINANCING CHARGES

On Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds 327.12 356.44
On term/bridging loans 1,695.74 1,742.48
On fixed deposits and inter-corporate deposits 198.52 115.47
On borrowing from banks/others for working capital 2,466.90 2,095.13
Other financing charges 0.90 1.20

4,689.18 4,310.72

JCT LIMITED
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SCHEDULE – 'IX'
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Basis of preparation of Financial statements

The accompanying financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (“GAAP”) and the provisions of Companies Act, 1956, except for certain fixed assets
which have been revalued.

2. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP in India requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of
financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the
actual result and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

3. Fixed Assets
(a) Fixed assets, except those revalued, are accounted for on historical cost basis (inclusive of the cost of installation and

exchange fluctuations on foreign currency loans obtained for acquisition of fixed assets) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any.

(b) Expenditure during construction period attributable to the fixed assets incurred upto the date of commercial production
are capitalized.

(c) Expenditure on renovation/ modernisation relating to existing fixed assets is added to the cost of such assets where it
increases its performance/life significantly.

(d) Leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease.
4. Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and are stated at cost of acquisition/ implementation less accumulated
depreciation. It is amortized over a period of 5 years on straight line basis.

5. Investments
Investments primarily meant to be held over long term period are valued at cost. Provision is made when in the management’s
opinion, there is decline, other than temporary, in the carrying value of such investments. Current investments are stated at
the lower of cost or quoted/fair value, computed category wise.

6. Inventory Valuation
(a) Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
(b) In respect of raw materials and stores & spares, cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished goods and

process stock include cost of inputs, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

(c) Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for, wherever required.
7. Depreciation

(a) Depreciation is provided as under:
(i) On written down value basis at the applicable rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 on

pro-rata basis except in respect of Plant & Machinery and Buildings, which is provided on straight line method at the
applicable rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 on pro-rata basis.

(ii) Depreciation on buildings of Textile Units revalued in earlier years is calculated on the respective revalued figures
spread equally over the residual life of the concerned buildings as assessed by the valuer. The difference in
depreciation on revalued amount so determined and the depreciation on the original cost of such assets calculated
in accordance with Section 205(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 is transferred from Revaluation Reserve to the credit
of Depreciation Account.

(b) In respect of assets sold/ discarded during the year, depreciation is provided upto the month prior to the date of sale/
discarding.

8. Impairment of Assets
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged
to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impaired loss of prior accounting period
is increased/ reversed where there has been change in the estimate of recoverable amount. The recoverable value is the
higher of the assets’ net selling price and value in use.

9. Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currency existing at balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on that date.
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Exchange differences in case of borrowed funds and liabilities in foreign currency for the acquisition of fixed assets from a
country outside India are adjusted to the cost of fixed asset. All other exchange differences are recognised in profit and loss
account. Premium or discount on forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract.
Exchange difference on such contract is recognized in the statement of profit & loss account in the reporting period in which
the exchange rates changes. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward contract is recognised as income
and expenditure during the period.

10. Revenue Recognition
(a) Sales revenue is recognised on transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer and

are inclusive of excise duty/sales tax/VAT and net of trade discounts. Export sales are recognised on the date the
company ships the exported goods as evidenced by their Bill of Lading/Air-way Bill.

(b) Sale of Certified Emission Reduction (CER) is recognised as income on the generation of CER.
(c) Export benefit entitlements under the duty entitlement pass book (DEPB) scheme are recognised in the Profit & Loss

account when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made.
Obligation/entitlements on account of advance license scheme for imports of raw materials are accounted for at the time
of purchase of raw materials.

(d) Other items of revenue are recognised in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-9). Accordingly, wherever there
are uncertainties in the ascertainment/ realisation of income it is not accounted for as revenue.

(e) Profit/loss on sale of revalued fixed assets are stated with reference to the written down value determined on the basis
of their historical cost.

11. Leases
Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are
recognized as an operating lease. Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss
Account on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

12. Government Grants
Government grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance of compliance with the conditions attached to such
grants and where benefits in respect thereof have been earned and it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be
made. Government subsidy received for a specific asset is reduced from the cost of the said asset.

13. Employee Benefits
(a) Liability towards Provident Fund is funded through a separate Trust and contributions thereon are made to the Trust.
(b) Gratuity to employees is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation reduced by balance available under group

gratuity policy with the Insurance Companies. The deficit between the actual payments and recoveries against claims are
charged to revenue.

(c) Liability towards earned leave which is encashable is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation.
(d) The Company has an approved Superannuation Scheme for its Officers not covered under the Payment of Bonus Act,

1965. Contributions are made in accordance with the Scheme and the Trust Rules.

14. Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are allocated to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other
borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

B. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: Rs. 17.55 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 16.61 lakhs).
(b) Guarantees given by the bankers on behalf of the Company: Rs. 287.05 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 158.07 lakhs).
(c) Unutilised amount of letters of credit established : Rs. 36.63 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 222.86 lakhs).
(d) Disputed liabilities not adjusted as expenses in the Accounts for various years being in appeals towards:

As at 31.3.2010 As at 31.3.2009
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Sales Tax 394.39 55.33
Income Tax 118.80 152.77
Excise Duty 2,491.40 2,478.59
Stamp Duty 187.72 187.72
Custom Duty 186.05 186.05
Others 229.44 189.45
Total 3,607.80 3,249.91
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C. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for in the Accounts (net of
advances) : Rs. 451.98 lakhs (Previous year : Rs. 322.97 lakhs).

2. Secured loans of Rs. 28,593.32 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 28,648.54 lakhs) from banks/financial institutions and a body
corporate are additionally secured by personal guarantees of Vice Chairman and Managing Director and Shri M. M. Thapar.
Further, secured loans of Rs. 991.96 lakhs are secured through pledge of 9,08,98,773 equity shares of JCT Limited held by
Promoter group companies.

Secured loan of Rs.2,003.98 lakhs from a scheduled bank is collaterally secured by way of pledge of a title deed of an
immovable property belonging to a wholly owned subsidiary company.

3. Corporate guarantee of Rs. 3,580.00 lakhs given to IFCI Ltd. for the term loan given to JCT Electronics Ltd. was invoked in
an earlier year. As the said term loan has been restructured in terms of the scheme sanctioned by the ‘Board for Industrial and
Financial Reconstruction’ which is under process of implementation, the invocation of guarantee is under abeyance.

4. Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds:

The Company raised US$ 30 million through the issue of 2.5% unsecured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) on
8.4.2006. FCCBs amounting to US$ 4.58 Million have been converted into equity shares upto 31.03.2010.

As per the terms of the issue, the bondholders have the option to convert the FCCBs into fully paid-up equity shares upto 8th
March, 2011 at a reset price of Rs. 12.88 per equity share (determined as per SEBI Regulations) having a fixed exchange rate
of Rs. 44.6225 per US$.

FCCBs may be redeemed at the specified early redemption amounts in whole and not in part at the option of the Company at
any time on or after 7.4.2009 but prior to 8.4.2011 subject to satisfaction of certain conditions.

FCCBs on maturity on 8.4.2011 are redeemable by the Company at a premium of 20.075% in either cash or by allotment of
fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 2.50 each with the condition that the equity shares can be allotted for only upto 65% of the
redemption amount.

Pro-rata premium for the year of Rs. 242.57 lakhs (net) payable on redemption has been adjusted against the Share Premium
Account (Previous year: Rs. 773.84 lakhs).

5. In respect of the Company’s investment in JCT Electronics Ltd.:

(a) The Company has given an undertaking to a financial institution and a bank of JCT Electronics Ltd. that the Company
would not dispose off, pledge, charge, or create any lien, assign 39,33,000 equity shares having face value of Re. 1/-
each.

(b) The Company has pledged 42,87,000 equity shares having a face value of Re. 1/- each with a financial institution for
financial facility availed by JCT Electronics Ltd.

(c) Due to heavy accumulated losses, JCT Electronics Ltd. has restructured its share capital in terms of the scheme of
rehabilitation approved by the ‘Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction’ and the face value of the equity share
was reduced to Re.1/- from Rs.10/-. Accordingly, 90% of the book value of the investment amounting to Rs.5,062.94
lakhs has been written off during the year with corresponding write back of the provision for diminution in value of the
investments.

(d) During the year, the investment has been transferred from current to long term investments in view of its strategic
importance and the management’s intention not to dispose it off in near future.

6. (a) The Company  had  revalued its certain  freehold  land  held at Tehsil  Phagwara on  01.04.2005 and the resultant revalued
amount of Rs. 10,417.70 lakhs was substituted for the historical cost in the gross block of fixed assets.

(b) Based on the valuation report submitted by the registered valuers, the Company has revalued its freehold land at Village
Chohal, Hoshiarpur on 15.03.2010 and the resultant revalued amount of Rs.4,403.91 lakhs has been substituted for the
historical cost in the gross block of fixed assets. The resultant surplus arising on such revalued amount over the book
value of land amounting to Rs.4,373.60 lakhs has been credited to Revaluation Reserve Account during the year.

7. Government grant of Rs. 416.54 lakhs received in 2008-09 was reduced against the cost of specific plant and machinery.

8. Capital work in progress includes under noted pre-operative expenditure pending allocation on commencement of commercial
production.
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(Rs. in lakhs)
As at Less As at

1.4.2009 Additions Capitalised 31.3.2010
Salary and wages 15.66 38.72 54.38 —
Raw material/Stores & Spares consumed — 20.38 20.38 —
Sale of fabrics — (4.68) (4.68) —
Power & Fuel — 1.68 1.68 —
Office & Misc. Expenses 9.71 17.75 10.75 16.71
Discount and Bank charges — 0.17 0.17 —
Travelling expenses 106.65 2.85 50.25 59.25
Legal & Professional fees 32.91 4.63 7.03 30.51
Total 164.93 81.50 139.96 106.47

9. The Company has continued to adjust the foreign currency exchange differences on amounts borrowed for acquisition of
fixed assets to the carrying cost of fixed assets which is in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, read with
notification dated 31st March, 2009 of the Government of India. This has resulted in decrease in fixed assets by Rs.1,517.27
lakhs during the year (Previous Year: increase of Rs. 2,948.40 lakhs).

10. Loans and advances include the following amounts:
Maximum amount

As at outstanding during
31.3.2010 the year

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Associate Companies *
JCT Chemicals & Fibres Ltd. 395.00 403.36
Firemount Textile (India) Ltd. 9.35 9.35

* Interest-free and with no stipulation for repayment
11. Security deposits include Rs. 860.00 lakhs received during the year against ‘Leave & License’ of certain properties with

licensees’ option to buy at an agreed price in which eventuality the security deposit would be adjusted against the sale
proceeds.

12. (a) The Company has not recorded cumulative deferred tax assets on account of timing differences as stipulated in
Accounting Standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
in view of substantial losses and no taxable income for the current year as also due to uncertainty of future taxable
income.

(b) In view of no taxable profits, no provision for Income Tax as per the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961 is considered
necessary. Adequate provision in respect of Wealth tax has been made in the accounts.

13. In view of inadequacy of profits:
(a) No commission is payable to whole time directors.
(b) No capital redemption reserve has been created during the year.

14. Foreign exchange variation gain (net) on account of revenue transactions amounting to Rs.133.26 lakhs (Previous year loss
(net): Rs. 47.17 lakhs) has been debited/ credited to respective revenue heads.

15. The Company has an export obligation of Rs.12,662.94 lakhs against import of machinery under EPCG Scheme which it
would meet within stipulated period.

16. Going Concern:
Losses during the current year and preceding financial year have resulted in substantial erosion in net worth and working
capital of the Company. However, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis on the strength of
continued support of the promoters, bankers and other lenders and in view of the steps initiated by the management to infuse
funds in the Company by sale of surplus assets and other sources.
The management is of the view that the losses incurred are temporary in nature and considering the future plans for
operations and support of the promoters and lenders, it is hopeful of improved profitability leading to improvement in its
financial position.

17. During the year, cotton ginning and pressing factory at Abohar with assets at net book value of Rs. 13.15  lakhs, which was
part of the textile operations of the Company, was disposed off and the resultant  profit of Rs.248.24 lakhs has been treated
as ‘Exceptional Income’ and shown separately in the Profit & Loss Account.
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18. LEASES
The Company has leased facilities under cancellable and non cancellable operating lease arrangements with a lease terms
ranging from 1 to 3 years, which are subject to renewal thereafter at mutual consent. The cancellable arrangements can be
terminated by either party after giving due notice. The lease rent expense recognized during the year amounts to Rs.26.33
lakhs. The future lease payments in respect of non cancelable operating leases for a period later than one year but not later
than 5 years is Rs. 28.70 lakhs as at 31st March, 2010.

19. Discontinued Operations:
During the year operations at Unit-1 of Sriganganagar Textile Mill were discontinued. The Company entered into an agreement
with the workers unions pursuant to which full and final dues of 616 workers have been settled and paid off. Company also
entered into various agreements for disposal of the assets of the Unit and the assets were partially disposed off during the
year. The identified assets pending disposal having net book value of Rs.112.21 lakhs are carried at the net book value,
expected net realizable value being higher, and are disclosed in ‘Schedule E’ as ‘Assets held for disposal’. Advances of
Rs.391.60 lakhs received from the buyers of assets of the Unit are included in the Current Liabilities to be adjusted pending
completion of formalities.
Company has recognised loss of Rs. 599.59 lakhs as ‘Loss from discontinued Operations’ and disclosed it separately in the
Profit and Loss Account. In earlier years results of the Unit were included under ‘Textile Segment’. Disclosures as required
under ‘Accounting Standard 24 – Discontinuing Operations’ are as under:

Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year

ended 31.3.2010  ended 31.3.2009
Total Assets 112.21 361.72
Total Liabilities excluding corporate funds 393.15 410.71
Other Income 34.88 1.66
Expenses:

Payments to & provisions for employees 335.74 378.93
Compensation to workers for retiral 263.92 —
Other office & miscellaneous expenses 34.81 9.36
Depreciation — 25.71

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (599.59) (412.34)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (599.59) (412.34)
Net Cash Flows attributable to:

(a) Operating Activities (including change in working capital) 17.93 (386.63)
(b) Investing Activities 249.90 —
(c) Financing Activities — —

20. During the year, no production took place at Unit-2 of Sriganganagar Textile Mill. The Company is taking steps to revive the
operations.

21. Pursuant to the losses in the current year, accumulated losses as on 31.03.2010 exceed fifty percent of the peak net worth
of the Company during preceding four financial years attracting provisions of ‘Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions)
Act, 1985’. Accordingly, requisite actions are being taken as envisaged under the said Act including intimation to the ‘Board for
Industrial and Financial Reconstruction’.

22. Employee Benefits
(a) General description of the defined benefit scheme:

Gratuity : Payable on separation as per the Employees Gratuity Act @ 15 days
pay for each completed year of service to eligible employee who render
continuous service of 5 years or more.

Leave Encashment : Payable on encashment as per the policy or on separation to the eligible
employees who have accumulated earned leave.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a defined benefit plan.

In respect of gratuity and leave encashment, the present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

(c) Other disclosures as required under AS-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits” in respect of defined benefit obligations
are as under:

JCT LIMITED
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(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation
(Rs. in lakhs)

Gratuity Gratuity Leave encashment
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08
Defined Benefit obligation
at beginning of the year 1225.19 1054.26 1129.91 804.74 740.32 677.65 434.67 412.72 382.97
Current Service Cost 80.89 77.44 62.94 37.56 50.49 196.86 46.08 45.10 139.72
Interest Cost 91.89 79.07 84.74 60.35 55.52 50.82 32.60 30.95 28.72
Actuarial (gain)/loss 15.91 136.38 7.65 66.94 40.91 (35.34) (26.49) 59.57 1.78
Benefits paid (172.71) (121.96) (230.98) (395.71) (82.50) (149.67) (78.42) (113.67) (140.47)
Defined Benefit obligation
at year end 1241.17 1225.19 1054.26 573.88 804.74 740.32 408.44 434.67 412.72

(ii) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
(Rs. in lakhs)

Gratuity (Funded)
2009-10 2008-09 2007-08

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 475.52 502.00 487.98
Expected return on plan assets 41.61 46.69 45.13
Actuarial gain/(loss) (5.14) (5.17) (4.13)
Employer contribution — 53.96 204.00
Benefits paid (165.96) (121.96) (230.98)
Fair value of plan assets at year end 346.03 475.52 502.00
Actual return on plan assets 36.47 41.52 41.00

(iii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
(Rs. in lakhs)

Gratuity Gratuity Leave encashment
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08
Fair value of plan assets 346.03 475.52 502.00 — — — — — —
Present value of obligation 1241.17 1225.19 1054.26 573.88 804.74 740.32 408.44 434.67 412.72
Amount recognized in
Balance Sheet (Liability) (895.14) (749.67) (552.26) (573.88) (804.74) (740.32) (408.44) (434.67) (412.72)

(iv) Expense recognized during the year (Under the head “Payments to and Provisions for Employees” in Schedule ‘V’)

(Rs. in lakhs)
Gratuity Gratuity Leave encashment
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08
Current Service Cost 80.89 77.44 62.94 37.56 50.49 196.86 46.08 45.10 139.72
Interest Cost 91.89 79.07 84.74 60.35 55.52 50.82 32.60 30.95 28.72
Expected return on plan assets (41.61) (46.69) (45.13) — — — — — —
Actuarial (gain)/loss 15.91 136.38 7.65 66.94 40.91 (35.34) (26.49) 59.57 1.78
Net Cost 147.08 246.20 110.20 164.85 146.92 212.34 52.19 135.62 170.22

(v) Investment Details

(% Invested)

As at
31st March, 2010 31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Life Insurance Corporation of India 100 100 100

JCT LIMITED
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(vi) Actuarial assumptions
As at 31.3.2010 As at 31.3.2009 As at 31.3.2008

Method used Projected unit credit

Mortality Table (LIC) 1994-96 (duly modified)

Discount rate (per annum) 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 8.75% 9.30% 9.25%

Withdrawal Rate (per annum) upto 30/44 years 3% / 2% / 1% 3% / 2% / 1% 3% /2% / 1%

and above 44 years
Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the
actuary.
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors, mainly the composition of
plan assets held, assessed risks, historical results of return on plan assets and the Company’s policy for plan assets
management.

(vii) The disclosure above is in respect of the current year and the immediately preceding two years. The disclosure in respect of
two immediately preceding annual periods as required by 'AS-15 (Revised 2005)' is not presented as the management
considered it impracticable in the absence of requisite information.

23. Disclosure of Derivative Instruments:
(a) The following are the outstanding forward exchange contracts used for hedge against currency exposures as at

31st March, 2010.
Currency In foreign currency In Indian Rupee Exposure to Buy/Sell

(in million) (in lakhs)
US$ 0.60 300.19 Sell

(b) Foreign currency exposures that have not been specifically hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise as at
31st March, 2010 are given below:

Rs. in lakhs Foreign Currency in millions
Current Previous Current Year Previous year

year year Currency Amount Currency Amount
Sundry Debtors 360.65 345.03 US$ 0.80 US$ 0.68

142.51 60.77 Euro 0.24 Euro 0.09
Loans and Advances 296.25 288.65 Euro 0.50 Euro 0.30
Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds 13,440.27 14,988.26 US$ 29.49 US$ 29.13
Sundry Creditors 267.03 72.63 US$ 0.58 US$ 0.18

30.39 45.83 Euro 0.05 Euro 0.01
22.53 — JPY 4.59 — —

24. Related party disclosures:
A. Relationship

(a) Subsidiary Companies: (c) Other related parties where control/
Gupta & Syal Ltd. significant influence exists:
Rajdhani Trading Co. Ltd. Mr. M.M. Thapar

JCT Electronics Ltd.
(b) Key Management Personnel: Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd.

Mr. Samir Thapar JCT Chemicals & Fibres Ltd.
Mr. Rajmohan Singh India International Airways Ltd.

CNLT (Far East) Berhad
Karam Chand Thapar & Bros. Ltd.
JCT Sports Pvt. Ltd.
Firemount Textles (India) Ltd.
KCT Textiles Ltd.

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

JCT LIMITED
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B. Transactions with related parties

(Rs. in lakhs)

31.3.2010 31.3.2009

EXPENSES
Professional Fee: Mr. M.M. Thapar 24.00 15.20

Rent Paid: Gupta & Syal Ltd. 0.60 0.60

Rent Paid: Rajdhani Trading Co. Ltd. 0.27 0.27

Travelling Expenses: India International Airways Ltd. 7.14 26.96

Sports promotion Expenses: JCT Sports Pvt. Ltd. 139.20 109.46

Establishment Expenses Realised: Rajdhani Trading Co. Ltd. 0.12 0.12

Investments: Debentures of KCT Textiles Ltd. (287.24) (287.24)

Investments: Debentures of Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. (597.06) (597.60)

Investments: Equity shares of Karam Chand Thapar & Bros. Ltd. — (0.39)

FIXED ASSETS: Sale of Land to Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. — (305.00)

(Rs. in lakhs)

Dr./(Cr.) Received/ Refunded/ Dr./(Cr.)
Balance as on adjusted/given adjusted during Balance as on

1.4.2009 during the year the year 31.3.2010

UNSECURED LOANS FROM:
Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. (617.16) — 617.16 —

Other Receivables
Rajdhani Trading Co. Ltd. — 0.12 0.12 —

JCT Chemicals & Fibres Ltd. 402.91 0.45 8.36 395.00

Firemount Textiles (India) Ltd. 9.08 0.27 — 9.35

Gupta & Syal Ltd. — 9.25 9.25 —

411.99 10.09 17.73 404.35
Payables:
JCT Electronics Ltd. (57.61) (1.00) 0.04 (58.57)

JCT Sports Pvt. Ltd. (30.79) (118.11) 148.90 —

Mr. M.M. Thapar — (15.85) 1.95 (13.90)

Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. (42.87) (1,199.00) 1,229.26 (12.61)

India International Airways Ltd. (9.76) (7.04) 5.87 (10.93)
(141.03) (1,341.00) 1,386.02 (96.01)

Note:Details of remuneration to key management personnel referred to in A(b) above are given in Note No. D.9 of this
Schedule.

25. Segment Reporting Policies
(a) Identification of segments

(i) Primary Segments
Business segment: The Company’s operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the
nature of products, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products. Two
identified segments are Textiles and Filament yarn. The products considered as a part of Textile segment are cloth,
yarn and fents, rags and chindies. The products considered as a part of Filament segment are nylon yarn and chips.

(ii) Secondary Segment
Geographical Segment: The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers.

(b) Inter Divisional transfers of goods, as marketable products produced by separate divisions of the Company, for captive
consumption are made as if sales were made to third parties at current market prices and are included in turnover.

(c) Unallocable Items
Corporate income, corporate expenses, interest, capital and reserves are considered as part of unallocable items which
are not identifiable to any business segment.
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Segment information:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Textile Filament Total

2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

External Sales/Income 31,345.54 31,873.51 25,910.88 24,068.53 57,256.42 55,942.04

Segment revenue 31,776.89 32,369.67 26,510.90 24,716.22 58,287.79 57,085.89

Segment results (2,629.40) (2,088.80) 2,543.42 1,604.23 (85.98) (484.57)

Segment assets 53,119.17 56,609.47 13,508.51 14,227.42 66,627.68 70,836.89

Segment liabilities 16,971.49 15,399.05 7,493.99 6,034.98 24,465.48 21,434.03

Reconciliation of reportable segment with the financial statements:
(Rs in lakhs)

Revenues Net Profit/(Loss) Assets Liabilities

2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Total of reportable Segments 58,287.79 57,085.89 (85.98) (484.57) 66,627.68 70,836.89 24,465.48 21,434.03

Add: Corporate-Unallocated 253.26 802.16 (952.97) 1,267.41) 11,847.07 9,386.93 44,007.92 46,927.33

Interest expenses — — (4,689.18) (4,310.73) — — — —

Exceptional Items (net) — — (351.35) — — — — —

Taxes — — (10.02) (73.64) 260.93 238.36 — —

As per financial statements 58,541.05 57,888.05 (6,089.50) (6,136.35) 78,735.68 80,462.18 68,473.40 68,361.36

(d) Secondary segment reporting (By geographical segments)

The following is the distribution of the Company’s sales by geographical market, regardless where the goods were
produced:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Current Year Previous year

Sales to domestic market 51,750.85 49,376.90

Sales to overseas market 5,414.84 6,322.23

Total 56,985.69 55,699.13

The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods for domestic and overseas markets. Hence, separate figures
for fixed assets/additions to fixed assets cannot be furnished.

26. Earnings/(loss) per share:

Current Year Previous Year

Net Loss as per Profit & Loss Account – (Rs. in lakhs) 6,089.50 6,136.35

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic Profit 35,90,78,590 35,70,69,192

Add: (i) Adjustment for option for 29,11,365 (Previous year : 30,39,479)

Optionally Partially Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 6,70,90,288 6,91,15,832

(ii) Adjustment for option for foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

having face value US$ 25,420,000 (Previous Year US$ 26,000,000) 6,87,35,253 7,64,78,876

Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted Loss 49,49,04,131 50,26,63,900

Nominal value of Equity Share (Rs.) 2.50 2.50

Basic loss per Share before exceptional itens (Rs.) (1.60) (1.72)

Diluted loss per Share before exceptional items (Rs.) (1.16) (1.22)

Basic loss per Share after exceptional itens (Rs.) (1.70) (1.72)

Diluted loss per Share after exceptional items (Rs.) (1.23) (1.22)

27. Figures for previous year have been re-arranged, wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.
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D. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPHS
(3) TO (4D) OF PART II OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

1. Particulars in respect of the installed capacities and the actual production :
Installed Capacity

Current Previous
Class of goods Unit Year Year

(a) Ring spindles Nos. 50,728 70,728

(b) Rotor open end Nos. 2,568 2,568

(c) Looms Nos. 486 486

(d) Synthetic filament
including industrial
yarn/tyre cord M.T. 14,000 14,000

(e) Polyester/nylon chips M.T. 1,000 1,000

(f) Cotton Ginning 6 Saw gins-
capacity 193

bales per day
(3 shifts)

NOTES: 1. Installed capacities are as those certified by the management.

2. Licensed capacities are not given as no license is required.

SCHEDULE - IX (Contd.)

2. Particulars in respect of stocks of finished goods and sales:
STOCK OPENING             PURCHASE

Unit of Current Year Previous Year           Current  Year
Class of Goods Quantity Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

A. MANUFACTURING:
Cloth (in '000) Mtrs. 1,449 1,010.76 1,487 1,096.76 — —
Fents, rags and  chindies M.T. — — 1 0.98 — —
Yarn M.T. 4 2.29 40 33.64 — —
Nylon filament yarn M.T. 560 947.43 919 1,601.57 — —
Polyester/nylon chips M.T. 71 64.31 — — — —
Others — 39.85 — 85.01 — —

B. TRADING:
Ready-made garments (in '000) Pcs 12 35.44 5 12.87 85 300.25

TOTAL 2,100.08 2,830.83 300.25

NOTES: * inclusive of 59'000 pcs manufactured from own cloth.

** does not include export incentives of Rs.270.73 lakhs (previous year: Rs.242.91 lakhs)
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Actual Production
Current Previous

Class of goods Unit Year Year

Yarn* M.T. 9,677 10,634

Cloth** (in '000)  Mtrs. 41,356 41,132
Fents, rags & chindies M.T. 500 498

Nylon filament yarn M.T. 11,580 11,093

Polyester/nylon chips M.T. 1,236 338

Processed cotton Bales — 14,741

* inclusive of 9,640 M.T. consumed for the manufacture of cloth (Previous year: 10,602 M.T.).

** inclusive of 21 thousand metres internally consumed (Previous year: 79 thousand metres).

PURCHASE STOCK CLOSING NET SALES**

Previous Year Current Year Previous Year Current Year Previous Year
Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value

(Rs. in  lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

13 6.30 1,217 1,001.55 1,449 1,010.76 41,567 30,010.14 41,104 30,675.83

— — 2 0.50 — — 498 255.29 499 239.40

— — — — 4 2.29 41 31.26 68 60.65

— — 701 1,207.64 560 947.43 11,439 24,460.16 11,453 23,649.87

— — 3 3.78 71 64.31 1,304 1,341.11 267 270.58

— — — 39.70 — 39.85 — 520.79 — 547.56

52 252.80 58 161.75 12 35.44 98* 366.94 45 255.24

259.10 2,414.92 2,100.08 56,985.69 55,699.13
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3. Analysis of raw materials consumed:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Unit of Quantity Quantity Value Quantity Value

Cotton Bales 56,660 6,293.80 60,933 6,240.82

Grey cloth (in' 000) Mtrs 6,234 2,082.39 5,537 1,673.62

Synthetic fibre M.T. 1,641 1,323.88 1,888 1,457.19

Finished fabrics (in' 000) Mtrs 188 174.77 181 174.78

Blended yarn M.T. 2,029 2,681.86 2,114 2,709.55

Caprolactum M.T. 11,772 12,300.75 11,532 12,108.35

Renol chips M.T. 99 194.67 95 221.03

Nylon POY M.T. 1,096 1,351.98 167 203.37

26,404.10 24,788.71

* Standard bale of 1.70 quintals.

4. Value of imports on C.I.F. basis :

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(a) Raw materials 1,633.51 564.30

(b) Components & spare parts etc. 633.45 616.91

(c) Capital goods 151.78 131.32

2,418.74 1,312.53

* Including Rs.18.91 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. Nil) being the value of documents retired which includes the value of materials and
components, spare parts and capital goods in transit and stores and spares under approval.

5. Expenditure in foreign currency:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

(a) Commission on export sales 46.77 45.05

(b) Other matters : On travelling 86.12 92.43

: On others 48.49 103.28

Total 181.38 240.76

6. Earnings in foreign currency:

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Export of goods calculated on F.O.B. basis* 5,482.24 6,089.63

* includes deemed exports of Rs. 194.67 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 1,030.26 lakhs).

*

SCHEDULE - IX (Contd.)
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7. Value of imported raw materials, spare parts and components (excluding stores) consumed and the value of
indigenous raw materials, spare parts and components (excluding stores) similarly consumed and the
percentage of each to the total consumption:

Current Year Previous Year

Particulars Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

(a) Raw materials - imported 1,893.50 7.17 597.79 2.41

Raw materials - indigenous 24,510.60 92.83 24,190.92 97.59

26,404.10 100.00 24,788.71 100.00

(b) Spare parts & components - imported 357.54 23.39 366.18 21.99

Spare parts & components - indigenous 1,171.30 76.61 1,298.68 78.01

Total* 1,528.84 100.00 1,664.86 100.00

* Consumption of components and spare parts includes estimated value of stock brought forward from earlier years.

8. No amount has been remitted during the year in foreign currency on account of dividend.

NOTE : Information and particulars given for items (1) to (8) are as those certified by the Management.

9. Particulars of managerial remuneration are as under:

Vice Chairman & Director
Managing Director (Operations)

Current Previous Current Previous

Year Year Year Year

(Rs.in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Salary including allowances 42.00 44.17 33.72 33.72

Contribution to provident and

Superannuation funds* 7.50 7.50 6.00 6.00

Perquisites & Reimbursement 6.00 3.83 14.18 14.28

55.50 55.50 53.90 54.00

* Excluding the provision made towards gratuity and leave encashment on actuarial basis.

10. Prior period expenses aggregating Rs. 6.75 lakhs (net debit) have been accounted for in the respective heads
of account (Previous year: Rs.16.90 lakhs - net credit).

SCHEDULE - IX (Contd.)
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E. BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

(Amount : Rs. in lakhs)

1. Registration details
Registration No. 4,565 State Code 16

Balance Sheet date Date Month Year

31 03 2010

2. Capital raised during the period
Public issue Nil Private Placement Nil

Right issue Nil Bonus issue Nil

3. Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds
Total Liabilities 74,734 Total Assets 74,734

4. Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital 11,888 Reserves & Surplus 14,174

Secured loans 29,780 Unsecured loans 18,892

5. Application of Funds
Net Fixed Assets 51,655 Investments 5,392

Net Current Assets 1,887 Accumulated losses 15,800

6. Performance of Company
Turnover 58,541 Total Expenditure 64,269

Loss before tax 6,080 Loss after tax 6,090

Loss per share (Rs.) Dividend Rate (%) Nil

- Basic 1.70

- Diluted 1.23

7. Generic names of two Principal Products/Services of Company (as per monetary terms)
Item Code No.(ITC Code) 5208 and 5210 Product Description Cotton & Blended Textiles

Item Code No.(ITC Code) 5,402 Product Description Nylon Filament Yarn

Signatures to Schedules ‘I’ to ‘IX’ of the Profit & Loss Account

Sanjiva Jain S.C. Saxena Samir Thapar G.B. Kathuria
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Vice Chairman & Rajmohan Singh

Managing Director Directors

As per our report of even date attached
S.P. CHOPRA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

Place : New Delhi Pawan K. Gupta
Dated : August 6, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 92529

SCHEDULE - IX (Contd.)
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AUDITORS' REPORT

We have examined the attached consolidated Balance Sheet
of JCT Limited  and its subsidiaries as at 31st March, 2010, the
consolidated Profit and Loss Account and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of JCT
Limited. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in India. Those Standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable  assurance
whether the financial statements are prepared, in all material
respects, in accordance with an identified financial reporting
framework generally accepted in India and are free of material
misstatements. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statements. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We did not audit the financial statements of subsidiaries, whose
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 11.38 lakhs as
at 31st March, 2010 and total profit of Rs. 1.90 lakhs for the year
then ended. These financial statements have been audited by
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and
our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in
respect of the subsidiaries, is based solely on the report of the
other auditors.

We report that the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared by the Company in accordance with the requirements
of Accounting Standard 21, “Consolidated Financial
Statements”, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India and on the basis of the separate audited financial
statements of JCT Limited and its subsidiaries.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note No. 17
in Schedule IX in the financial statements. The Company has
incurred a net loss or Rs. 6,087.64 lakhs during the year ended
March 31, 2010 and, as on that date, its accumulated losses of
Rs. 15,761.15 lakhs are more than fifty percent of its net worth.
The company has incurred substantial cash losses in the
current year as also in the previous year. However, the financial
statements have been prepared on going concern basis on the
grounds as disclosed in the said note.

On the basis of the information and explanations given to us
and on the consideration of the separate audit reports on
individual audited financial statements of JCT Limited and its
subsidiaries, we are of the opinion that the attached consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India.

(a) in the case of the consolidated Balance Sheet of state of
affairs of JCT Limited and its subsidiaries as at 31st March,
2010;

(b) in case of the consolidated Profit and Loss Account of the
losses of JCT Limited and its subsidiaries for the year
then ended; and

(c) in case of the consolidated cash flow statement of the
cash flows of JCT Limited and its subsidiaries for the year
then ended.

For S.P. CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000346N

Pawan K. Gupta
Place : New Delhi Partner
Date : August 6, 2010 Membership No.: 92529

To the Board of Directors on consolidated financial statements
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2010

(Rs. in lakhs)

Schedule 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
No.

SOURCES OF FUNDS
1. SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

Capital ‘A’ 11,888.33 11,966.21
Reserves and surplus ‘B’ 14,173.99 9,845.15

26,062.32 21,811.36
2. LOAN FUNDS

Secured loans ‘C’ 29,779.76 30,324.58
Unsecured loans ‘D’ 18,891.99 22,065.08

48,671.75 52,389.66

TOTAL 74,734.07 74,201.02

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
1. FIXED ASSETS ‘E’

Gross block 101,903.54 99,860.12
Less : Depreciation 50,741.27 48,438.00

Net block 51,162.27 51,422.12
Capital work-in-progress 493.18 397.36

51,655.45 51,819.48
2. INVESTMENTS ‘F’ 5,311.78 6,195.78
3. GOODWILL (on Consolidation) 112.42 112.42
4. CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

Current Assets ‘G’
(a) Inventories 12,630.42 11,994.05
(b) Sundry Debtors 3,360.09 3,794.97
(c) Cash and bank balances 1,058.64 927.86

Loans and Advances ‘H’ 4,646.25 5,655.10

21,695.40 22,371.98
Less : CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

(a) Current liabilities ‘I’ 17,645.04 13,691.06
(b) Provisions ‘J’ 2,157.09 2,281.09

19,802.13 15,972.15
5. NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,893.27 6,399.83
6. PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT 15,761.15 9,673.51

Significant accounting policies and

notes forming part of the Balance Sheet 'IX’

TOTAL 74,734.07 74,201.02

Sanjiva Jain S.C. Saxena Samir Thapar G.B. Kathuria
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Vice Chairman & Rajmohan Singh

Managing Director Directors
As per our report of even date attached

S.P. CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000346N

Place : New Delhi Pawan K. Gupta
Dated : August 6, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 92529
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2010 (Rs. in lakhs)

Schedule Current Year Previous Year
No.

INCOME
Gross Sales  ‘I’ 59,249.21 57,765.89
Less: Excise Duty (1,992.79 (1,823.85
Net Sales 57,256.42 55,942.04
Other income  ‘II’ 1,285.22 1,947.07
Increase/(decrease) in stocks ‘III’ (277.37 358.37

58,264.27 58,247.48

EXPENDITURE
Raw materials consumed 26,404.10 24,788.71
Other Manufacturing expenses  ‘IV’ 17,782.91 18,438.47
Purchase 300.25 259.10
Payments to and provisions for employees  ‘V’ 6,143.59 6,517.84
Administration and other expenses  ‘VI’ 1,928.58 2,882.90
Selling and distribution expenses ‘VII’ 2,814.96 2,757.22
Interest and financing charges ‘VIII’ 4,689.18 4,310.72
Depreciation

Depreciation for the year 3,950.89 4,379.75
Less: Transfer from revaluation reserve (24.15 (24.15

3,926.74 4,355.60
63,990.31 64,310.56

Profit/(Loss) before Tax and exceptional item (5,726.04 (6,063.08
Profit on sale of Ginning factory
(Refer Note 18 in Schedule IX) 248.24 —
Profit/(Loss) form continuing operations
after exceptional item and before tax (5,477.80 (6,063.08
Provision for tax 10.25 73.80
Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations
after exceptional item and after tax (5,488.05 (6,136.88
Loss from discontinued operations
(Refer Note 20 in Schedule IX) 599.59 —
Net Profit/(Loss) after tax (6,087.64 (6,136.88
Loss brought forward from last year (9,673.51 (3,536.63
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming
part of the Profit & Loss Account ‘IX’
Balance loss carried over to Balance Sheet (15,761.15 (9,673.51

Earning/(Loss) per share before exceptional items
-in Rs. (refer note No.27 of Schedule IX)
- Basic (1.60 (1.72
- Diluted (1.16 (1.22
Earning/(Loss) per share after exceptional items
-in Rs. (refer note No.27 of Schedule IX)
- Basic (1.70 (1.72
- Diluted (1.23 (1.22

Sanjiva Jain S.C. Saxena Samir Thapar G.B. Kathuria
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Vice Chairman & Rajmohan Singh

Managing Director Directors
As per our report of even date attached

S.P. CHOPRA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000346N
Place : New Delhi Pawan K. Gupta
Dated : August 6, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 92529

)

) )

) )

) )

) )
) )

) )

) )
) )

) )
) )

) )

) )
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2010

(Rs. in lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31.3.2010 31.3.2009

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before tax and exceptional items (5,726.04 (6,063.08
Adjustment for:
Depreciation 3,926.74 4,355.60
Provision for diminution in value of investments 0.82 582.00
Fixed Assets written off 27.48 6.30
Provision for doubtful debts and advances etc. 128.55 233.41
Bad debts written off 0.62 42.80
Investments written off — 3.74
Liabilities/provisions no longer required, written back (121.94 (105.45
Depreciation excess provided in earlier years written back — (1.55
Interest expense 4,689.18 4,310.72
Interest earned (119.08 (79.06
Dividend/Interest on Investment (3.37 (3.19
Profit on sale of investments — (4.55
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) (77.38 (434.83
Foreign exchange fluctuation (net) (133.26 47.17

8,318.36 8,953.11
Operating profit before exceptional items
and before working capital changes 2,592.32 2,890.03

Adjustment for working capital changes:
Inventories (636.37 1,143.75
Trade and other receivables 1,337.07 (391.17
Trade payables and others 3,951.92 1,365.86

4,652.62 2,118.44

Cash generated from operations: 7,244.94 5,008.47
Cash flow from operating activities 7,244.94 5,008.47
Income tax paid (net of provision) (32.76 (125.43
Net cash flow from operating activities 7,212.18 4,883.04

B. CASH FLOW FROM EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
Sale proceeds of Ginning factory (Refer Note 18 in Schedule IX) 261.39 —
Loss from discontinued operations (Refer Note 20 in Schedule IX) (599.59 —
Net Cash flow from Exceptional Items (338.20 —

C. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of fixed assets including
capital work in progress (922.46 (1,162.15
Sale of fixed assets 27.58 573.45
Purchase/sale/proceeds from investments (net of provison for diminution) 266.02 889.61
Interest earned 119.08 79.06
Dividend/Interest on Investments 3.37 3.19
Net cash used in investing activity (506.41 383.16

) )

) )

) )

)
)

)

)

) )
) )

)

)

)

) )

)

) )
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Contd.)
(Rs. in lakhs)

Year ended Year ended
31.3.2010 31.3.2009

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Redemption of Preference Shares (net) (128.11 (307.10
Redemption of debentures (net) (437.78 (671.02
Repayment/proceeds from long term secured loans (net) (698.56 (2,319.28
Proceeds from short term loans - Secured 591.52 1,350.63
Proceeds from short term loans - Unsecured (1,007.94 732.43
Foreign exchange fluctuations (net) 133.26 (47.17
Interest and financing charges (4,689.18 (4,310.72

Net cash used in financing activities (6,236.79 (5,572.23

(DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 130.78 (306.03
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (OPENING) 927.86 1,233.89

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CLOSING) 1,058.64 927.86

Note to cash flow statement :
Cash and Cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and balances with banks.
Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement comprise the following
Balance Sheet items
Cash in hand (including cheques and drafts in hand/remittance in transit) 304.36 187.67
Balances with banks :
— Current accounts 66.05 65.70
— Others 688.04 674.30
— Cash and bank balances lodged as security 0.19 0.19

1,058.64 927.86

Sanjiva Jain S.C. Saxena Samir Thapar G.B. Kathuria
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Vice Chairman & Rajmohan Singh

Managing Director Directors

As per our report of even date attached
For & on behalf of  S.P. CHOPRA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

Place : New Delhi Pawan K. Gupta
Dated : August 6, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 92529

) )

) )
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SCHEDULES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2010

(Rs. in lakhs)

SCHEDULE ‘A’ 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED

600,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.2.50 each 15,000.00 15,000.00
5,000,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each 5,000.00 5,000.00

20,000.00 20,000.00
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

35,90,78,590 (Previous Year: 35,70,69,192) - Equity Shares
of Rs.2.50 each, fully paid-up 8,976.96 8,926.73
29,11,365 (Previous Year: 30,39,479)- Optionally Partially
Convertible Preference Shares of Rs.100/- each (net of redemption) 2,911.37 3,039.48

11,888.33 11,966.21

NOTES :
1. (i) During the year, 20,09,398 equity shares of Rs.2.50 each were issued on exercise of the option for conversion by the

holders of the foreign currency convertible bonds at a premium of Rs.10.38 per equity share as per terms of issue.
(ii) In earlier years, 11,80,235 Equity Shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares, capitalised from General

Reserve and Share Premium Account.
2. (i) 13,32,378 Optionally Partially Convertible Preference Shares (OPCPS) issued to a financial institution, banks and body

corporates with an outstanding amount of Rs. 1,332.38 lakhs carry no dividend and are redeemable as under:
Date 31.12.2010 31.12.2011
Amount (Rs. in lakhs) 307.10 1,025.28

20% of the face value is optionally convertible into equity shares during the currency of OPCPS in which case the amount
of conversion of OPCPS would be reduced from the last redemption instalment payable.

(ii) 1,400,000 OPCPS with an outstanding amount of Rs.1,400 lakhs carry no dividend and are redeemable on 26.12.2010
with the option to convert before that the whole amount into equity shares at the amount to be determined and as
permissible under SEBI guidelines.

(iii) 1,25,079 OPCPS of Rs.125.08 lakhs due to a financial institution on 31.12.2009 have been rescheduled and are repayable
in six equal monthly instalments starting from April 30,2010 alongwith interest @13% p.a..

(iv) 53,908 OPCPS of Rs.53.91 lakhs issued to a bank and a body corporate and due on 31.12.2009 were pending redemption.

SCHEDULE ‘B’ 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Account 165.44 165.44
REVALUATION RESERVE
As per last Account 682.84 706.99
Add: On account of revaluation of land
(Refer Note 7.b in Schedule IX) 4,373.60 —
Less: Transfer to Profit & Loss Account on sale of assets (1.10 —
Less: Transfer to Profit & Loss Account (24.15 (24.15

5,031.19 682.84
DEBENTURE REDEMPTION RESERVE
As per last Account 2,045.76 2,045.76
SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT
As per last Account 6,951.11 7,724.95
Add: Premium on conversion of

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) 223.06 —
Add: Write back of pro-rata redemption

premium payable on FCCBs 35.94 —
Less: Premium payable on redemption of FCCBs

(Refer Note No 5 of Schedule IX) (278.51 (773.84
6,931.60 6,951.11

14,173.99 9,845.15

)
) )

) )
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NOTES:
1. (a) 3,78,040 Debentures of Rs.378.04 lakhs issued to a financial institution and a body corporate are redeemable on 31.12.2010.

(b) 4,37,776 Debentures of Rs.437.78 lakhs due to a financial institution for repayment on 31.12.2009 have been resched-
uled and are payable in six equal monthly instalments starting from April 30,2010 alongwith interest @ 13% p.a.

(c) 88,475 Debentures of Rs.88.47 lakhs due to a body corporate for repayment on 31.12.2009 were pending redemption.
2. (a) Term Loans and Debentures are secured by hypothecation of all the moveable properties including plant & machinery

and accessories etc. (both present & future) and also equitable mortgage, by deposit of title deeds, of all the immoveable
properties (both present & future) including land, factory buildings, structures, erections, constructions and/or further
constructions to be made thereon pertaining to Textile and Filament Units except:
– Term Loan of  Rs.1,399.39 lakhs from scheduled banks, which are secured by hypothecation of specific plant &

machinery.
– Term Loan of Rs. 216.27 lakhs from scheduled banks and Rs. 65.89 lakhs from non-banking finance companies are

secured against specific vehicles.
(b) Debentures are additionally secured by a legal mortgage over the immovable properties of the Company (both present

& future) situate at Dist. Mehsana (Gujarat).
3. Cash Credit facilities from consortium of scheduled banks are secured by first charge ranking pari-passu inter-se amongst

themselves on all the stock of raw materials, stock in process, semi-finished and finished goods, stores & spares, bills
receivable and books debts and all other moveables current assets both present and future pertaining to Company’s Textile
and Filament Units. These are also secured by second charge over the fixed assets pertaining to abovesaid units.

4. Financial facilities from Allahabad Bank are additionally secured by first charge by way of an equitable mortgage over the land
admeasuring around 9 acres and structures thereon at Phagwara.

5. Term Loans due within one year aggregate Rs.464.07 lakhs including Rs.86.90 lakhs due during 2009-10 repaid subsequently.
6. During the year, the Company repaid Rs. 258.08 lakhs of term loans with delays ranging from 1 to 167 days due to financial constraints.

(Rs. in lakhs)

SCHEDULE ‘C’ 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
SECURED LOANS

DEBENTURES
Zero rate Redeemable Debentures (Net of redemption) 904.29 1,342.07

TERM LOANS
Financial Institutions — 421.97
Scheduled banks 18,735.25 18,742.42
Others 89.38 362.92
Interest accrued and due on above 4.12 —

18,828.75 19,527.31

CASH CREDIT ACCOUNTS WITH SCHEDULED BANKS 10,046.72 9,454.71
Add: Interest accrued and due — 0.49

10,046.72 9,455.20

29,779.76 30,324.58

SCHEDULE ‘D’ 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
UNSECURED LOANS

FIXED DEPOSITS 2,052.02 1,253.31
Add: Interest accrued and due 13.22 6.64

2,065.24 1,259.95
SHORT TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
(i) from a bank — 1,998.76
(ii) book overdraft 889.24 797.13

889.24 2,795.89

FOREIGN CURRENCY CONVERTIBLE BONDS 11,586.44 13,377.00
(Refer Note No 5 of Schedule IX)
Add: Premium payable on redemption 1,853.83 1,611.26

13,440.27 14,988.26

INTEREST-FREE LOAN FROM A BODY CORPORATE — 617.16

SECURITY DEPOSITS 2,497.24 2,403.82

18,891.99 22,065.08
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SCHEDULE 'E'

CONSOLIDATED FIXED ASSETS
ORIGINAL COST

ASSETS As at Additions Sales/ As at
1.4.2009 during disposal/ 31.3.2010

the year adjustments
during the year

TANGIBLE ASSETS
Land freehold 10,769.18 4,452.23 2.06 15,219.35
Building 12,014.16 29.23 129.09 11,914.30
Buildings-Leasehold 5.45 — — 5.45
Plant & machinery:
Plant & machinery (main) 74,024.82 425.19 2,704.96 71,745.05
Data processing equipment 537.97 24.84 77.85 484.96
Electric installations
including gadgets 822.13 27.57 27.91 821.79
Tools & implements 79.00 0.06 15.73 63.33
Furniture & fixtures &
other equipment 574.77 31.39 53.26 552.90
Vehicles 875.68 137.80 140.16 873.32
Leasehold Improvements — 23.51 — 23.51
Scrap (value of
discarded assets) 3.90 3.58 5.80 1.68
Sub-total 99,707.06 5,155.40 3,156.82 101,705.64
Intangible Assets
Computer Software 153.06 44.84 — 197.90

Curent year’s total 99,860.12 5,200.24 3,156.82 101,903.54

Previous year’s total 90,899.45 10,071.65 1,110.98 99,860.12

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Capital work-in-progress

Advances against machinery
and civil work - unsecured
considered good

Machinery in transit

Total

* includes Rs. 4,373.60 lakhs on account of revaluation of land (Refer Note 7.b in Schedule IX)

** includes Rs. 1,517.27 lakhs arising due to foreign exchange fluctuations. (Refer note.10 in Schedule IX)

*

**
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(Rs. in lakhs)

DEPRECIATION WRITTEN DOWN VALUE

As at For the On sales As at As at As at
1.4.2009 year disposals/ 31.3.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009

adjustment
during the year

— — — — 15,219.35 10,769.18
3,443.00 325.08 88.45 3,679.63 8,234.67 8,571.16

4.86 0.03 — 4.89 0.56 0.59

42,967.88 3,392.67 1,312.78 45,047.77 26,697.28 31,056.94
402.20 31.31 66.74 366.77 118.19 135.77

554.98 30.85 17.12 568.71 253.08 267.15
59.00 2.42 9.14 52.28 11.05 20.00

447.71 23.69 44.96 426.44 126.46 127.06
539.83 105.71 108.43 537.11 336.21 335.85

— 2.61 — 2.61 20.90 —

— — — — 1.68 3.90
48,419.46 3,914.37 1,647.62 50,686.21 51,019.43 51,287.60

18.54 36.52 — 55.06 142.84 134.52

48,438.00 3,950.89 1,647.62 50,741.27 51,162.27 51,422.12

44,609.32 4,379.75 551.07 48,438.00 51,422.12

395.02 335.24

98.16 24.23

— 37.89

493.18 397.36

NOTES:
The above includes the following assets held for disposal as at 31st March, 2010 (previous year Rs. Nil) which are being carried
at the lower of net block and net realisabe value. (Refer Note 12 in Schedule IX)

Description Gross Block Accumulated Net Block
depreciation

Land Freehold 84.65 — 84.65
Buildings 6.32 3.84 2.48
Plant & Machinery (Main) 210.05 186.20 23.85
Tools & implements 9.36 9.36 —
Electric installation including gadgets 4.45 3.23 1.22
Furniture & fixtures & other equipments 1.52 1.51 0.01
TOTAL 316.35 204.14 112.21
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SCHEDULE 'F'

CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENTS
Balance as on 31.3.2009

Face value No. Face Value Book Value
Name of the Company Rs. Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

A. LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Other Companies
In Optionally Convertible Zero Rate Debentures

Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. (Note-1) 100 2,390,400 2,390.40 2,390.40
KCT Textiles Ltd. (Note-2) 100 2,585,158 2,585.16 2,585.16

In Cumulative Convertible Preference Shares
Tata Steel Limited 100 54 0.05 0.05

8.25% Secured Redeemable Non-convertible Debentures
Britannia Industries Ltd. 170 — — —

In Equity Shares -quoted
JCT Electronics Ltd. (Refer Note 6 in Schedule IX) 1 10,631,900 106.32 5,625.48

In Equity Shares - unquoted
India International Airways Ltd. 10 3,630,000 363.00 537.00
Nimbua Greenfield (Punjab) Ltd. 10 50,000 5.00 5.00
Preeti Vanijya (P) Ltd. 10 52,312 5.23 418.50
Mynah Industries Ltd. (formerly Rama Qualitex Ltd.) 10 400,000 40.00 40.00
Shivalik Video Communication Ltd. 100 9,200 9.20 9.20
The New India Co-operative Bank Ltd. 10 3,260 0.33 0.33

B. CURRENT INVESTMENTS
In Equity Shares - quoted

ABB Ltd. (Note 3) 2 6,000 0.12 0.07
Aditya Birla Nuvo Ltd. (Note 3) 10 9,313 0.93 11.90
Alstom Projects India Ltd. (Note 3) 10 1,200 0.12 —
Ashok Leyland Ltd. (Note 3) 1 5,000 0.05 0.18
Asian Paints Ltd. (Note 3) 10 600 0.06 —
Britannia Industries Ltd. (Note 3) 10 500 0.05 —
CNLT (Far East) Berhad, Malaysia of MYR 1 each (Note 4) 0 6,402,884 — 18.05
Cheslind Textiles Ltd. 10 15,000 1.50 1.50
Colgate Palmolive (I) Ltd. (Note 3) 1 3,000 0.03 0.06
EIH Ltd. (Note 3) 2 7,500 0.15 —
Grasim Industries Ltd. (Note 3) 10 1,000 0.10 —
HDFC Bank Ltd. (Note 3) 10 500 0.05 0.05
Hindustan Unilever Ltd. (Note 3) 1 5,000 0.05 0.03
Housing Development Finance Corpn. Ltd (Note 3) 10 3,020 0.30 0.40
India Card Clothing Ltd. 10 75 0.01 0.02
Tata Steel Ltd. (Note 3) 10 72 0.01 0.05
The Waterbase Ltd. 10 1,450,000 145.00 145.00

In Units of Mutual Fund
UTI Growth Fund 10 8,516 0.85 5.25

HDFC Prudential Mutual Fund - Growth 10 2,957 0.30 4.00

11,797.68

Less: Provision for diminution in value of investments (5,601.90)

6,195.78

NOTES:

1. Redeemable on 31st March each year in three equal instalments.
2. Redeemable on 31st March each year in eight equal instalments.
3. Pledged against a short term loan of Rs. 375 lakhs availed by an associate company.
4. Since the company is under liquidation and no realisation is expected, the investment has been fully written off and corresponding provision for

diminution in value of investment has been written back.
5. Particulars of quoted/unquoted investments and their market value are as under:
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Additions during the year Sold/adjusted during the year Balance as on 31.3.2010
No. Book Value No. Book Value No. Face Value Book Value

Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

— — 597,600 597.60 1,792,800 1,792.80 1,792.80
— — 287,240 287.24 2,297,918 2,297.92 2,297.92

— — 54 0.05 — — —

500 — — — 500 0.85 —

— — — 5,062.94 10,631,900 1,06.32 562.54

— — — — 3,630,000 363.00 537.00
— — — — 50,000 5.00 5.00
— — — — 52,312 5.23 418.50
— — 396,000 39.60 4,000 0.40 0.40
— — — — 9,200 9.20 9.20
— — — — 3,260 0.33 0.33

— — — — 6,000 0.12 0.07
— — — — 9,313 0.93 11.90
— — — — 1,200 0.12 —
— — — — 5,000 0.05 0.18
— — — — 600 0.06 —
— — — — 500 0.05 —
— — 6,402,884 18.05 — — —
— — — — 15,000 1.50 1.50
— — — — 3,000 0.03 0.06
— — — — 7,500 0.15 —
— — — — 1,000 0.10 —
— — — — 500 0.05 0.05
— — — — 5,000 0.05 0.03
— — — — 3,020 0.30 0.40
— — — — 75 0.01 0.02
9 0.05 — — 81 0.01 0.10

— — — — 1,450,000 145.00 145.00

— — — — 8,516 0.85 5.25
— — — — 2,957 0.30 4.00

0.05 6,005.48 5,792.25
— (5,121.43) (480.47)

0.05 884.05 5,311.78

(Rs. in lakhs)
(Rs. in lakhs) Book Value Market Value

31.3.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
A. In Debentures 4,090.72 B. Quoted investments 581.10 488.53 605.96 488.53

In fully paid up Equity Shares 1,211.81 Unquoted investments 4,730.68 5,707.25 — —
In Mutual Fund Units 9.25

5,311.78 5,311.78 6,195.78 605.96 488.53
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(Rs. in lakhs)
SCHEDULE ‘G’ 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories as prepared, valued and certified

by the management
(i) Stores & spares 1,881.05 2,029.58
(ii) Raw materials (including Rs. 1472.78 lakhs

lying with outside parties/creditors) 2,449.74 1,384.23
(iii) Stock in-trade 2,414.92 2,100.08
(iv) Stock in-process 3,368.69 3,774.80
(v) Loose stock awaiting packing 2,429.66 2,615.76
(vi) Goods in-transit 86.36 89.60

12, 630.42 11,994.05

(b) Sundry debtors (unsecured)
(i) Debts outstanding for a period exceeding six months :

Considered good 85.44 186.89
Considered doubtful 502.64 405.44

588.08 592.33
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (502.64 (405.44

85.44 186.89
(ii) Other debts : Considered good 3,274.65 3,608.08

3,360.09 3,794.97
(c) Cash and bank balances

(i) Cash-in-hand 13.70 8.22
(ii) Cheques and drafts-in-hand/remittance in transit 290.66 179.45
(iii) With scheduled banks :

(a) On current accounts 66.05 65.70
(b) On fixed deposits 14.73 15.09
(c) On margin money account 672.63 658.56
(d) In savings bank accounts 0.68 0.65

754.09 740.00
(iv) In Post Office Savings Accounts

(lodged as security) 0.19 0.19

17,049.15 16,716.88

SCHEDULE ‘H’
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured - considered good unless stated otherwise)
(a) ADVANCES AND OTHER AMOUNTS RECOVERABLE IN

CASH OR IN KIND OR FOR VALUE TO BE RECEIVED
(inclusive of interest accrued and accruing)
Considered good 4,385.34 5,416.70
Considered doubtful 1,450.04 1,902.78

5,835.38 7,319.48
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (1,450.04 (1,902.78

4,385.34 5,416.70

(b) TAX DEDUCTED AT SOURCE AND ADVANCE INCOME-TAX -
PENDING ADJUSTMENT (NET OF PROVISIONS) 260.91 238.40

4,646.25 5,655.10

JCT LIMITED

) )

) )
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(Rs. in lakhs)

SCHEDULE ‘I’ 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Acceptances including bills purchased and
discounted by the bankers 3,190.95 3,589.31

Sundry creditors: (Note 1 and 2) 13,563.32 9,264.62

Statutory liabilities 273.71 313.78

Remuneration payable to directors 1.67 —

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits,
debentures, loans and security deposits 582.73 488.96

Unclaimed amount of fixed deposits/preference shares
and interest thereon (Note 3) 20.86 22.25

Employees’ security deposits (deposited with
scheduled banks) 11.80 12.14

17,645.04 13,691.06

NOTES:

1. The Company has not received any intimation from the suppliers regarding their status under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amounts unpaid at the year end together with
interest paid/payable as required under the said Act have not been given.

2. Includes for machinery and civil works Rs.131.53 lakhs (Previous year: Rs.269.30 lakhs).

3. There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to Investors Education & Protection Fund.

SCHEDULE ‘J’
PROVISIONS

Provision for gratuity, superannuation
and leave encashment 2,157.09 2,281.09

2,157.09 2,281.09

Signatures to Schedules ‘A’ to ‘J’ of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Sanjiva Jain S.C. Saxena Samir Thapar G.B. Kathuria
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Vice Chairman & Rajmohan Singh

Managing Director Directors

As per our report of even date attached
S.P. CHOPRA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

Place : New Delhi Pawan K. Gupta
Dated : August 6, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 92529

JCT LIMITED
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SCHEDULES ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLADTED
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

(Rs. in lakhs)

SCHEDULE - I Current Year Previous Year
GROSS SALES

Sales (Gross) 58,978.48 57,522.98
Export incentives/duty draw back 270.73 242.91

59,249.21 57,765.89

SCHEDULE - II
OTHER INCOME

Dividend on shares - current investments 3.37 3.13
Interest on Bonds — 0.06
Interests on deposits with Banks (Gross: Tax deducted
at source Rs. 6.98 lakhs, previous year: Rs. 5.64 lakhs) 64.65 48.92
Interest received/receivable on loans and advances,
overdue accounts etc. (Gross: Tax deducted at source
Rs. 6.50 Lakhs, Previous year: Rs. 3.41 lakhs) 54.43 30.14
Profit on sale of fixed assets (net) 77.38 434.83
Profit on sale of investments — 4.78
Liabilities/provisions no longer required, written back 121.94 105.45
Depreciation excess provided in earlier years written back (net) — 1.55
Miscellaneous receipts (Gross: tax deducted
at source Rs. 26.51 lakhs Previous year: Rs. 32.85 lakhs) 963.45 1,318.21

1,285.22 1,947.07

SCHEDULE - III
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN STOCKS

Opening Stocks :
Finished 2,100.08 2,830.83
Loose stock - awaiting packing 2,615.76 1,666.38
In-process 3,774.80 3,635.06

8,490.64 8,132.27
Closing Stocks :

Finished 2,414.92 2,100.08
Loose stock - awaiting packing 2,429.66 2,615.76
In-process 3,368.69 3,774.80

8,213.27 8,490.64

(277.37) 358.37

SCHEDULE - IV
OTHER MANUFACTURING EXPENSES

Stores & spares consumed 6,874.42 7,125.77
Power & fuel 8,879.20 9,441.01
Repairs to and maintenance of buildings 93.47 112.15
Repairs to and maintenance of plant & machinery 1,385.99 1,339.80
Excise Duty* 30.57 (13.17)
Processing charges 400.48 341.72
Material handling charges 118.78 91.19

17,782.91 18,438.47

* Represents the difference between excise duty on opening and closing stock of finished goods.



59

JCT LIMITED

(Rs. in lakhs)
SCHEDULE - V Current Year Previous Year
PAYMENTS TO AND PROVISIONS FOR EMPLOYEES

Salaries, wages, bonus, gratuity, allowances etc. 5,346.99 5,709.70
Contribution to provident, superannuation and other funds 499.61 495.04
Workmen & staff welfare expenses 296.99 313.10

6,143.59 6,517.84

SCHEDULE - VI
ADMINISTRATION AND OTHER EXPENSES

Rent 165.54 155.17
Rates & taxes 29.70 31.81
Insurance 66.56 67.61
Directors’ fee 6.94 8.46
Directors’ remuneration 75.72 77.89
Other miscellaneous and office expenses 1,399.01 1,644.42
Auditors’ remuneration:

Audit fee 12.08 12.08
Certification work 4.53 4.43
Out-of-pocket expenses 1.15 1.76

17.76 18.27
Bad debts written off 491.14 266.70
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful debts written back (490.52) (223.90)

0.62 42.80
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 128.55 233.41
Loss on sale of raw materials/stores (net) 11.52 11.02
Long Term Investments written off 5,120.59 3.74
Less: Provison for dimunition in value

of investments written back 5,120.59 —

— 3.74
Provision for dimunition in value of investments (0.82) 582.00
Fixed Assets written off 27.48 6.30

1,928.58 2,882.90

SCHEDULE - VII
SELLING & DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling & publicity expenses 312.79 278.28
Commission to dealers/convassing agents 544.84 499.21
Freight & cartage (net) 657.50 645.65
Sales tax & octroi 1,003.30 982.40
Cash discount on sales 296.53 351.68

2,814.96 2,757.22

SCHEDULE - VIII
INTEREST AND FINANCING CHARGES

On Foreign Currency convertible Bonds 327.12 356.44
On term/bridging loans 1,695.74 1,742.48
On fixed deposits and inter-corporate deposits 198.52 115.47
On borrowing from banks/others for working capital 2,466.90 2,095.13
Other financing charges 0.90 1.20

4,689.18 4,310.72
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SCHEDULE 'IX'
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. Basis of preparation of Financial statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles in India (“GAAP”) and the provisions of Companies Act, 1956, except for certain
fixed assets which have been revalued.
The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the principles and procedures laid out by the Accounting
Standard on consolidated financial statements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book
values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after eliminating intra-group balances and transactions and
resulting un-realised gains/losses. The consolidated financial statements are prepared applying uniform accounting policies
in use at the Company and its subsidiaries.

2. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP in India requires the management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of
financial statements, and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the
actual result and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known/ materialised.

3. Fixed Assets
(a) Fixed assets, except those revalued, are accounted for on historical cost basis (inclusive of the cost of installation and

exchange fluctuations on foreign currency loans obtained for acquisition of fixed assets) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment loss, if any.

(b) Expenditure during construction period attributable to the fixed assets incurred upto the date of commercial production
are capitalized.

(c) Expenditure on renovation/ modernisation relating to existing fixed assets is added to the cost of such assets where it
increases its performance/life significantly.

(d) Leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease.
4. Intangible assets

Intangible assets consist of computer software and are stated at cost of acquisition/ implementation less accumulated
depreciation. It is amortized over a period of 5 years on straight line basis.

5. Investments
Investments primarily meant to be held over long term period are valued at cost. Provision is made when in the management’s
opinion, there is decline, other than temporary, in the carrying value of such investments. Current investments are stated at
the lower of cost or quoted/fair value, computed category wise.

6. Inventory Valuation
(a) Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
(b) In respect of raw materials and stores & spares, cost is computed on weighted average basis. Finished goods and

process stock include cost of inputs, conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

(c) Obsolete, defective and unserviceable stocks are provided for, wherever required.
7. Depreciation

(a) Depreciation is provided as under:
(i) On written down value basis at the applicable rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 on

pro-rata basis except in respect of Plant & Machinery and Buildings, which is provided on straight line method at the
applicable rates prescribed under Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956 on pro-rata basis.

(ii) Depreciation on buildings of Textile Units revalued in earlier years is calculated on the respective revalued figures
spread equally over the residual life of the concerned buildings as assessed by the valuer. The difference in
depreciation on revalued amount so determined and the depreciation on the original cost of such assets calculated
in accordance with Section 205(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 is transferred from Revaluation Reserve to the credit
of Depreciation Account.

(iii) In case of one subsidiary Company, depreciation on Building - Leasehold has been provided @ 5% on written down
value basis.

(iv) In case of another subsidiary Company, depreciation is provided on written down value basis in the manner and at
the applicable rates prescribed in Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956.

(b) In respect of assets sold/ discarded during the year, depreciation is provided upto the month prior to the date of sale/
discarding.

8. Impairment of Assets
An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged
to the Profit & Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impaired loss of prior accounting period
is increased/ reversed where there has been change in the estimate of recoverable amount. The recoverable value is the
higher of the assets’ net selling price and value in use.
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9. Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currency existing at balance sheet date are translated at the exchange rate prevailing on that date.
Exchange differences in case of borrowed funds and liabilities in foreign currency for the acquisition of fixed assets from a
country outside India are adjusted to the cost of fixed asset. All other exchange differences are recognised in profit and loss
account. Premium or discount on forward exchange contract is amortised as expense or income over the life of the contract.
Exchange difference on such contract is recognized in the statement of profit & loss account in the reporting period in which
the exchange rates changes. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation or renewal of forward contract is recognised as income
and expenditure during the period.

10. Revenue Recognition
(a) Sales revenue is recognised on transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods to the buyer and

are inclusive of excise duty/sales tax/VAT and net of trade discounts. Export sales are recognised on the date the
company ships the exported goods as evidenced by their Bill of Lading/Air-way Bill.

(b) Sale of Certified Emission Reduction (CER) is recognised as income on the generation of CER.
(c) Export benefit entitlements under the duty entitlement pass book (DEPB) scheme are recognised in the Profit & Loss

account when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made.
Obligation/entitlements on account of advance license scheme for imports of raw materials are accounted for at the time
of purchase of raw materials.

(d) Other items of revenue are recognised in accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS-9). Accordingly, wherever there
are uncertainties in the ascertainment/ realisation of income it is not accounted for as revenue.

(e) Profit/loss on sale of revalued fixed assets are stated with reference to the written down value determined on the basis
of their historical cost.

11. Leases
Lease arrangements, where the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest with the lessor, are
recognized as an operating lease. Lease payments under operating lease are recognized as an expense in the Profit & Loss
Account on a straight-line basis over the lease period.

12. Government Grants
Government grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance of compliance with the conditions attached to such
grants and where benefits in respect thereof have been earned and it is reasonably certain that the ultimate collection will be
made. Government subsidy received for a specific asset is reduced from the cost of the said asset.

13. Employee Benefits
(a) Liability towards Provident Fund is funded through a separate Trust and contributions thereon are made to the Trust.
(b) Gratuity to employees is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation reduced by balance available under group

gratuity policy with the Insurance Companies. The deficit between the actual payments and recoveries against claims are
charged to revenue.

(c) Liability towards earned leave which is encashable is provided for on the basis of actuarial valuation.
(d) The Company has an approved Superannuation Scheme for its Officers not covered under the Payment of Bonus Act,

1965. Contributions are made in accordance with the Scheme and the Trust Rules.
14. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are allocated to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of cost of such
assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other
borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

B. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES NOT PROVIDED FOR
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts: Rs. 17.55 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 16.61 lakhs).
(b) Guarantees given by the bankers on behalf of the Company: Rs. 287.05 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 158.07 lakhs).
(c) Unutilised amount of letters of credit established : Rs. 36.63 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 222.86 lakhs).
(d) Disputed liabilities not adjusted as expenses in the Accounts for various years being in appeals towards:

As at 31.3.2010 As at 31.3.2009
(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)

Sales Tax 394.39 55.33
Income Tax 118.80 152.77
Excise Duty 2,491.40 2,478.59
Stamp Duty 187.72 187.72
Custom Duty 186.05 186.05
Others 229.44 189.45
Total 3,607.80 3,249.91
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C. NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. The financial statements of the subsidiaries used in the consolidation are drawn upto the same reporting date as that of parent

Company. The list of subsidiary companies which are included in the consolidation with the parent Company are as under:
(a) Gupta & Syal Limited
(b) Rajdhani Trading Co. Ltd.
All these Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of the parent Company i.e. JCT Limited and incorporated in India.

2. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account and not provided for in the Accounts (net of
advances) : Rs. 451.98 lakhs (Previous year : Rs. 322.97 lakhs).

3. Secured loans of Rs. 28,593.32 lakhs (Previous year: Rs. 28,648.54 lakhs) from banks/financial institutions and a body
corporate are additionally secured by personal guarantees of Vice Chairman and Managing Director and Shri M. M. Thapar.
Further, secured loans of Rs. 991.96 lakhs are secured through pledge of 9,08,98,773 equity shares of JCT Limited held by
Promoter group companies.
Secured loan of Rs.2,003.98 lakhs from a scheduled bank is collaterally secured by way of pledge of a title deed of an
immovable property belonging to a wholly owned subsidiary company.

4. Corporate guarantee of Rs. 3,580.00 lakhs given to IFCI Ltd. for the term loan given to JCT Electronics Ltd. was invoked in
an earlier year. As the said term loan has been restructured in terms of the scheme sanctioned by the ‘Board for Industrial and
Financial Reconstruction’ which is under process of implementation, the invocation of guarantee is under abeyance.

5. Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds:
The Company raised US$ 30 million through the issue of 2.5% unsecured Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCBs) on
8.4.2006. FCCBs amounting to US$ 4.58 Million have been converted into equity shares upto 31.03.2010.
As per the terms of the issue, the bondholders have the option to convert the FCCBs into fully paid-up equity shares upto 8th
March, 2011 at a reset price of Rs. 12.88 per equity share (determined as per SEBI Regulations) having a fixed exchange rate
of Rs. 44.6225 per US$.
FCCBs may be redeemed at the specified early redemption amounts in whole and not in part at the option of the Company at
any time on or after 7.4.2009 but prior to 8.4.2011 subject to satisfaction of certain conditions.
FCCBs on maturity on 8.4.2011 are redeemable by the Company at a premium of 20.075% in either cash or by allotment of
fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 2.50 each with the condition that the equity shares can be allotted for only upto 65% of the
redemption amount.
Pro-rata premium for the year of Rs. 242.57 lakhs (net) payable on redemption has been adjusted against the Share Premium
Account (Previous year: Rs. 773.84 lakhs).

6. In respect of the Company’s investment in JCT Electronics Ltd.:
(a) The Company has given an undertaking to a financial institution and a bank of JCT Electronics Ltd. that the Company

would not dispose off, pledge, charge, or create any lien, assign 39,33,000 equity shares having face value of Re. 1/-
each.

(b) The Company has pledged 42,87,000 equity shares having a face value of Re. 1/- each with a financial institution for
financial facility availed by JCT Electronics Ltd.

(c) Due to heavy accumulated losses, JCT Electronics Ltd. has restructured its share capital in terms of the scheme of
rehabilitation approved by the ‘Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction’ and the face value of the equity share
was reduced to Re.1/- from Rs.10/-. Accordingly, 90% of the book value of the investment amounting to Rs.5,062.94
lakhs has been written off during the year with corresponding write back of the provision for diminution in value of the
investments.

(d) During the year, the investment has been transferred from current to long term investments in view of its strategic
importance and the management’s intention not to dispose it off in near future.

7. (a) The Company  had  revalued its certain  freehold  land  held at Tehsil  Phagwara on  01.04.2005 and the resultant revalued
amount of Rs. 10,417.70 lakhs was substituted for the historical cost in the gross block of fixed assets.

(b) Based on the valuation report submitted by the registered valuers, the Company has revalued its freehold land at Village
Chohal, Hoshiarpur on 15.03.2010 and the resultant revalued amount of Rs.4,403.91 lakhs has been substituted for the
historical cost in the gross block of fixed assets. The resultant surplus arising on such revalued amount over the book
value of land amounting to Rs.4,373.60 lakhs has been credited to Revaluation Reserve Account during the year.

8. Government grant of Rs. 416.54 lakhs received in 2008-09 was reduced against the cost of specific plant and machinery.
9. Capital work in progress includes under noted pre-operative expenditure pending allocation on commencement of commercial

production.
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at Less As at
1.4.2009 Additions Capitalised 31.3.2010

Salary and wages 15.66 38.72 54.38 —
Raw material/Stores & Spares consumed — 20.38 20.38 —
Sale of fabrics — (4.68) (4.68) —
Power & Fuel — 1.68 1.68 —
Office & Misc. Expenses 9.71 17.75 10.75 16.71
Discount and Bank charges — 0.17 0.17 —
Travelling expenses 106.65 2.85 50.25 59.25
Legal & Professional fees 32.91 4.63 7.03 30.51
Total 164.93 81.50 139.96 106.47
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10. The Company has continued to adjust the foreign currency exchange differences on amounts borrowed for acquisition of
fixed assets to the carrying cost of fixed assets which is in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, read with
notification dated 31st March, 2009 of the Government of India. This has resulted in decrease in fixed assets by Rs.1,517.27
lakhs during the year (Previous Year: increase of Rs. 2,948.40 lakhs).

11. Loans and advances include the following amounts:
Maximum amount

As at outstanding during
31.3.2010 the year

(Rs. in lakhs) (Rs. in lakhs)
Associate Companies *
JCT Chemicals & Fibres Ltd. 395.00 403.36
Firemount Textile (India) Ltd. 9.35 9.35

* Interest-free and with no stipulation for repayment
12. Security deposits include Rs. 860.00 lakhs received during the year against ‘Leave & License’ of certain properties with

licensees’ option to buy at an agreed price in which eventuality the security deposit would be adjusted against the sale
proceeds.

13. (a) The Company has not recorded cumulative deferred tax assets on account of timing differences as stipulated in
Accounting Standard 22 on “Accounting for Taxes on Income” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
in view of substantial losses and no taxable income for the current year as also due to uncertainty of future taxable
income.

(b) In view of no taxable profits, no provision for Income Tax as per the provisions of the Income tax Act, 1961 is considered
necessary. Adequate provision in respect of Wealth tax has been made in the accounts.

14. In view of inadequacy of profits:
(a) No commission is payable to whole time directors.
(b) No capital redemption reserve has been created during the year.

15. Foreign exchange variation gain (net) on account of revenue transactions amounting to Rs.133.26 lakhs (Previous year loss
(net): Rs. 47.17 lakhs) has been debited/ credited to respective revenue heads.

16. The Company has an export obligation of Rs.12,662.94 lakhs against import of machinery under EPCG Scheme which it
would meet within stipulated period.

17. Going Concern:
Losses during the current year and preceding financial year have resulted in substantial erosion in net worth and working
capital of the Company. However, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis on the strength of
continued support of the promoters, bankers and other lenders and in view of the steps initiated by the management to infuse
funds in the Company by sale of surplus assets and other sources.
The management is of the view that the losses incurred are temporary in nature and considering the future plans for
operations and support of the promoters and lenders, it is hopeful of improved profitability leading to improvement in its
financial position.

18. During the year, cotton ginning and pressing factory at Abohar with assets at net book value of Rs. 13.15  lakhs, which was
part of the textile operations of the Company, was disposed off and the resultant  profit of Rs.248.24 lakhs has been treated
as ‘Exceptional Income’ and shown separately in the Profit & Loss Account.

19. LEASES
The Company has leased facilities under cancellable and non cancellable operating lease arrangements with a lease terms
ranging from 1 to 3 years, which are subject to renewal thereafter at mutual consent. The cancellable arrangements can be
terminated by either party after giving due notice. The lease rent expense recognized during the year amounts to Rs.26.33
lakhs. The future lease payments in respect of non cancelable operating leases for a period later than one year but not later
than 5 years is Rs. 28.70 lakhs as at 31st March, 2010.

20. Discontinued Operations:
During the year operations at Unit-1 of Sriganganagar Textile Mill were discontinued. The Company entered into an agreement
with the workers unions pursuant to which full and final dues of 616 workers have been settled and paid off. Company also
entered into various agreements for disposal of the assets of the Unit and the assets were partially disposed off during the
year. The identified assets pending disposal having net book value of Rs.112.21 lakhs are carried at the net book value,
expected net realizable value being higher, and are disclosed in ‘Schedule E’ as ‘Assets held for disposal’. Advances of
Rs.391.60 lakhs received from the buyers of assets of the Unit are included in the Current Liabilities to be adjusted pending
completion of formalities.
Company has recognised loss of Rs. 599.59 lakhs as ‘Loss from discontinued Operations’ and disclosed it separately in the
Profit and Loss Account. In earlier years results of the Unit were included under ‘Textile Segment’. Disclosures as required
under ‘Accounting Standard 24 – Discontinuing Operations’ are as under:
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Rs. in Lakhs
For the year For the year

ended 31.3.2010  ended 31.3.2009
Total Assets 112.21 361.72
Total Liabilities excluding corporate funds 393.15 410.71
Other Income 34.88 1.66
Expenses:

Payments to & provisions for employees 335.74 378.93
Compensation to workers for retiral 263.92 —
Other office & miscellaneous expenses 34.81 9.36
Depreciation — 25.71

Profit/ (Loss) before Tax (599.59) (412.34)
Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (599.59) (412.34)
Net Cash Flows attributable to:

(a) Operating Activities (including change in working capital) 17.93 (386.63)
(b) Investing Activities 249.90 —
(c) Financing Activities — —

21. During the year, no production took place at Unit-2 of Sriganganagar Textile Mill. The Company is taking steps to revive the
operations.

22. Pursuant to the losses in the current year, accumulated losses as on 31.03.2010 exceed fifty percent of the peak net worth
of the Company during preceding four financial years attracting provisions of ‘Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions)
Act, 1985’. Accordingly, requisite actions are being taken as envisaged under the said Act including intimation to the ‘Board for
Industrial and Financial Reconstruction’.

23. Employee Benefits

(a) General description of the defined benefit scheme:
Gratuity : Payable on separation as per the Employees Gratuity Act @ 15 days

pay for each completed year of service to eligible employee who render
continuous service of 5 years or more.

Leave Encashment : Payable on encashment as per the policy or on separation to the eligible
employees who have accumulated earned leave.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by a Trust is a defined benefit plan.

In respect of gratuity and leave encashment, the present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of
employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

(c) Other disclosures as required under AS-15 (Revised 2005) on “Employee Benefits” in respect of defined benefit obligations
are as under:

(i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit obligation
(Rs. in lakhs)

Gratuity Gratuity Leave encashment
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08

Defined Benefit obligation
at beginning of the year 1225.19 1054.26 1129.91 804.74 740.32 677.65 434.67 412.72 382.97

Current Service Cost 80.89 77.44 62.94 37.56 50.49 196.86 46.08 45.10 139.72

Interest Cost 91.89 79.07 84.74 60.35 55.52 50.82 32.60 30.95 28.72

Actuarial (gain)/loss 15.91 136.38 7.65 66.94 40.91 (35.34) (26.49) 59.57 1.78

Benefits paid (172.71) (121.96) (230.98) (395.71) (82.50) (149.67) (78.42) (113.67) (140.47)

Defined Benefit obligation
at year end 1241.17 1225.19 1054.26 573.88 804.74 740.32 408.44 434.67 412.72
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(ii) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assets
(Rs. in lakhs)

Gratuity (Funded)
2009-10 2008-09 2007-08

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 475.52 502.00 487.98

Expected return on plan assets 41.61 46.69 45.13

Actuarial gain/(loss) (5.14) (5.17) (4.13)

Employer contribution — 53.96 204.00

Benefits paid (165.96) (121.96) (230.98)

Fair value of plan assets at year end 346.03 475.52 502.00

Actual return on plan assets 36.47 41.52 41.00

(iii) Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligations
(Rs. in lakhs)

Gratuity Gratuity Leave encashment
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08

Fair value of plan assets 346.03 475.52 502.00 — — — — — —

Present value of obligation 1241.17 1225.19 1054.26 573.88 804.74 740.32 408.44 434.67 412.72

Amount recognized in
Balance Sheet (Liability) (895.14) (749.67) (552.26) (573.88) (804.74) (740.32) (408.44) (434.67) (412.72)

(iv) Expense recognized during the year (Under the head “Payments to and Provisions for Employees” in Schedule ‘V’)
(Rs. in lakhs)

Gratuity Gratuity Leave encashment
(Funded) (Unfunded) (Unfunded)

2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08 2009-10 2008-09 2007-08

Current Service Cost 80.89 77.44 62.94 37.56 50.49 196.86 46.08 45.10 139.72

Interest Cost 91.89 79.07 84.74 60.35 55.52 50.82 32.60 30.95 28.72

Expected return on plan assets (41.61) (46.69) (45.13) — — — — — —

Actuarial (gain)/loss 15.91 136.38 7.65 66.94 40.91 (35.34) (26.49) 59.57 1.78

Net Cost 147.08 246.20 110.20 164.85 146.92 212.34 52.19 135.62 170.22

(v) Investment Details

(% Invested)

As at
31st March, 2010 31st March, 2009 31st March, 2008

Life Insurance Corporation of India 100 100 100

(vi) Actuarial assumptions
As at 31.3.2010 As at 31.3.2009 As at 31.3.2008

Method used Projected unit credit

Mortality Table (LIC) 1994-96 (duly modified)

Discount rate (per annum) 7.50% 7.50% 7.50%

Expected date of return on plan assets (per annum) 8.75% 9.30% 9.25%

Withdrawal Rate (per annum) upto 30/44 years 3% / 2% / 1% 3% / 2% / 1% 3% /2% / 1%

and above 44 years

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
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The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion
and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the
actuary.
The expected rate of return on plan assets is determined considering several applicable factors, mainly the composition of
plan assets held, assessed risks, historical results of return on plan assets and the Company’s policy for plan assets
management.

(vii) The disclosure above is in respect of the current year and the immediately preceding two years. The disclosure in respect of
two immediately preceding annual periods as required by 'AS-15 (Revised 2005)' is not presented as the management
considered it impracticable in the absence of requisite information.

24. Disclosure of Derivative Instruments:
(a) The following are the outstanding forward exchange contracts used for hedge against currency exposures as at

31st March, 2010.
Currency In foreign currency In Indian Rupee Exposure to Buy/Sell

(in million) (in lakhs)
US$ 0.60 300.19 Sell

(b) Foreign currency exposures that have not been specifically hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise as at
31st March, 2010 are given below:

Rs. in lakhs Foreign Currency in millions
Current Previous Current Year Previous year

year year Currency Amount Currency Amount
Sundry Debtors 360.65 345.03 US$ 0.80 US$ 0.68

142.51 60.77 Euro 0.24 Euro 0.09
Loans and Advances 296.25 288.65 Euro 0.50 Euro 0.30
Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds 13,440.27 14,988.26 US$ 29.49 US$ 29.13
Sundry Creditors 267.03 72.63 US$ 0.58 US$ 0.18

30.39 45.83 Euro 0.05 Euro 0.01
22.53 — JPY 4.59 — —

25. Related party disclosures:
A. Relationship

(a) Key Management Personnel: (b) Other related parties where control/
Mr. Samir Thapar significant influence exists:
Mr. Rajmohan Singh Mr. M.M. Thapar

JCT Electronics Ltd.
Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd.
JCT Chemicals & Fibres Ltd.
India International Airways Ltd.
CNLT (Far East) Berhad
Karam Chand Thapar & Bros. Ltd.
Firemount Textles (India) Ltd.
KCT Textiles Ltd.
JCT Sports Pvt. Ltd.

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.
B. Transactions with related parties

(Rs. in lakhs)
31.3.2010 31.3.2009

EXPENSES
Professional Fee: Mr. M.M. Thapar 24.00 15.20
Travelling Expenses: India International Airways Ltd. 7.14 26.96
Sports promotion Expenses: JCT Sports Pvt. Ltd. 139.20 109.46
Investments: Debentures of KCT Textiles Ltd. (287.24) (287.24)
Investments: Debentures of Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. (597.06) (597.60)
Investments: Equity shares of Karam Chand Thapar & Bros. Ltd. — (0.39)
FIXED ASSETS: Sale of Land to Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. — (305.00)

JCT LIMITED
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Dr./(Cr.) Received/ Refunded/ Dr./(Cr.)

Balance as on adjusted/given adjusted during Balance as on
1.4.2009 during the year the year 31.3.2010

UNSECURED LOANS
Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. (617.16) — 617.16 —
Other Receivables
JCT Chemicals & Fibres Ltd. 402.91 0.45 8.36 395.00
Firemount Textiles (India) Ltd. 9.08 0.27 — 9.35

411.99 0.72 8.36 404.35
Payables
JCT Electronics Ltd. (57.61) (1.00) 0.04 (58.57)
JCT Sports Pvt. Ltd. (30.79) (118.11) 148.90 —
Mr. M.M. Thapar — (15.85) 1.95 (13.90)
Provestment Securities Pvt. Ltd. (42.87) (1,199.00) 1,229.26 (12.61)
India International Airways Ltd. (9.76) (7.04) 5.87 (10.93)

(141.03) (1,341.00) 1,386.02 (96.01)
Details of remuneration to key management personnel {referred to in A(a) above}

Vice Chairman Director
& Managing Director (Operations)

Current Year Previous year Current Year Previous year
Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs Rs. in Lakhs

Salary including allowances 42.00 44.17 33.72 33.72
Contribution to provident
And Superannuation Fund* 7.50 7.50 6.00 6.00
Perquisites & Reimbursement 6.00 3.83 14.18 14.28

55.50 55.50 53.90 54.00
*Excluding the provision made towards gratuity and leave encashment on actuarial basis.

26. Segment Reporting Policies
(a) Identification of segments

(i) Primary Segments
Business segment: The Company’s operating businesses are organised and managed separately according to the
nature of products, with each segment representing a strategic business unit that offers different products. Two
identified segments are Textiles and Filament yarn. The products considered as a part of Textile segment are cloth,
yarn and fents, rags and chindies. The products considered as a part of Filament segment are nylon yarn and chips.

(ii) Secondary Segment
Geographical Segment: The analysis of geographical segment is based on the geographical location of the customers.

(b) Inter Divisional transfers of goods, as marketable products produced by separate divisions of the Company, for captive
consumption are made as if sales were made to third parties at current market prices and are included in turnover.

(c) Unallocable Items
Corporate income, corporate expenses, interest, capital and reserves are considered as part of unallocable items which
are not identifiable to any business segment.

Segment information:
(Rs. in lakhs)

Textile Filament Total

2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

External Sales/Income 31,345.54 31,873.51 25,910.88 24,068.53 57,256.42 55,942.04

Segment revenue 31,776.89 32,369.67 26,510.90 24,716.22 58,287.79 57,085.89

Segment results (2,629.40) (2,088.80) 2,543.42 1,604.23 (85.98) (484.57)

Segment assets 53,119.17 56,609.47 13,508.51 14,227.42 66,627.68 70,836.89

Segment liabilities 16,971.49 15,399.05 7,493.99 6,034.98 24,465.48 21,434.03

JCT LIMITED
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Reconciliation of reportable segment with the financial statements:
(Rs in lakhs)

Revenues Net Profit/(Loss) Assets Liabilities

2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09 2009-10 2008-09

Total of reportable Segments 58,287.79 57,085.89 (85.98) (484.57) 66,627.68 70,836.89 24,465.48 21,434.03

Add: Corporate-Unallocated 253.85 803.22 (950.88) (1,267.79) 11,886.46 9,424.37 44,008.40 46,927.78

Interest expenses — — (4,689.18) (4,310.72) — — — —

Exceptional Items (net) — — (351.35) — — — — —

Taxes — — (10.25) (73.80) 260.91 238.40 — —

As per financial statements 58,541.64 57,889.11 (6,087.64) (6,136.88) 78,775.05 80,499.66 68,473.88 68,361.81

(d) Secondary segment reporting (By geographical segments)

The following is the distribution of the Company’s sales by geographical market, regardless where the goods were
produced:

(Rs. in lakhs)

Current Year Previous year

Sales to domestic market 51,750.85 49,376.90

Sales to overseas market 5,414.84 6,322.23

Total 56,985.69 55,699.13

The Company has common fixed assets for producing goods for domestic and overseas markets. Hence, separate figures
for fixed assets/additions to fixed assets cannot be furnished.

27. Earnings/(Loss) per share:

Current Year Previous Year

Net Loss as per Profit & Loss Account – Rs. in lakhs 6,087.64 6,136.88

Weighted average number of equity shares for Basic Profit 35,90,78,590 35,70,69,192

Add: (i) Adjustment for option for 29,11,365 (Previous year : 30,39,479)

Optionally Partially Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- each 6,70,90,288 6,91,15,832

(ii) Adjustment for option for foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

having face value US$ 25,420,000 (Previous Year US$ 26,000,000) 6,87,35,253 7,64,78,876

Weighted average number of equity shares for Diluted Profit/Loss 49,49,04,131 50,26,63,900

Nominal value of Equity Share (Rs.) 2.50 2.50

Basic Loss per Share before exceptional items (Rs.) (1.60) (1.72)

Diluted Loss per Share before exceptional items (Rs.) (1.16) (1.22)

Basic Loss per Share after exceptional items (Rs.) (1.70) (1.72)

Diluted Loss per Share after exceptional items (Rs.) (1.23) (1.22)

28. Figures for previous year have been re-arranged, wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

Signatures to Schedules ‘I’ to ‘IX’ of the Balance Sheet
Sanjiva Jain S.C. Saxena Samir Thapar G.B. Kathuria

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Vice Chairman & Rajmohan Singh
Managing Director Directors

As per our report of even date attached
S.P. CHOPRA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 000346N

Place : New Delhi Pawan K. Gupta
Dated : August 6, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 92529
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members

RAJDHANI TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

Your Directors present their Annual Report and Accounts for the
year ended 31.3.2010.

Financial Results
During the year under review, the company has made a profit of
Rs. 13,619/- after providing for depreciation to the tune of Rs.491/
-. In view of accumulated losses no payment of dividend is
recommended.

Directors
Mr. Jitender Khanna, Director, retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

Auditors
M/s Gautam Suri & Company, Chartered Accountants, the retiring
Auditors being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. They
have furnished a certificate that their re-appointment, if made,
would be within the limits specified in Section 224(1B) of the
Companies Act, 1956.

Auditors Report
The observations made by the Auditors in their Report are
adequately explained in the notes to the Accounts and Significant
Accounting Policies and need no further elaboration.
Requirement under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956
There are no employees covered under the provisions of the

Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read under the
Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
As required under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act,
1956 the Directors hereby confirm that:
(i) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed alongwith proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) Such accounting policies have been selected and applied
consistently and  judgments / estimates made that are
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the loss of the Company for that period;

(iii) Proper and sufficient care have been taken with the best of
knowledge and ability for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
said Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
and

iv) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

For & on behalf of  Board
Place : New Delhi Jitender Khanna
Dated : May 20, 2010 Director

AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the members
1 We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of M/s

RAJDHANI TRADING COMPANY LIMITED as at 31st March
2010 and also the Profit & Loss Account of the Company for
the year ended on that date annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibil ity of the Company’s
Management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

2 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

3 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003,
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act, 1956, we
enclose in the annexure a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

4 Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in
paragraph (03) above, we report that:
i. We have obtained all the information and explanations,

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

ii. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law, have been kept by the Company so far as appears
from our examination of those books;

iii. The Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account, dealt
with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

iv. In our opinion, the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss
Account, dealt with by this report comply with the
Accounting Standards, referred to in sub-section (3C)
of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

v. On the basis of written representations received from
the directors, as on 31st March, 2010 none of them are
disqualified from being appointed as a director in terms
of clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956;

vi. No comments are offered on clause (g) of the Section
227(3) of the Companies Act, 1956, since the Central
Government has not yet published any notification in
the Official Gazette for levy and collection of cess under
section 441A of the Companies Act, 1956;

vii. In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
Accounts read with Significant Accounting Policies and
Notes thereon, give the information required by the
Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India:-

a. In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the State of
Affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2010;and

b. In the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the
Loss for the year ended on that date; and

For GAUTAM SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 011073N

Place : New Delhi Gautam Suri
Dated : May 20, 2010 Sole Proprietor

Membership No. 89819
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RAJDHANI TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in Paragraph (03) of our Report of even date

1 In respect of fixed assets of the Company:-

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of its fixed assets.

b. The fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals and no material
discrepancy has been noticed on such verification.

2 The company does not have any inventories and as such
the clause is not applicable

3 During the year, the company has neither granted nor
taken any loans secured  or unsecured to /from companies,
firms or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Therefore
the provision of clause 4(iii) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) order, 2003 are not applicable to the Company.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, there are adequate internal control
procedures, commensurate with the size of the company
and the nature of its business, for the purchase of inventory
and fixed assets and for the sale of goods. During the
course of our audit no major weakness has been noticed
in the internal control system.

5. a. According to the information and explanations given
to us, we are of the opinion that the transactions that
need to be entered into the Register maintained under
section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956, have been
so entered.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanation given to us, the transaction made in
pursuance of contracts of arrangements entered in
the Register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956 and exceeding the value of
rupees five lacs in respect of concerned parties during
the year have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regard to prevailing market prices
at the relevant time.

6 The Company has not accepted any deposit under the
provisions of the Section 58A and 58AA of the Companies
Act, 1956 and the rules framed there under during the
year.

7 In our opinion, the company has an internal audit system,
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

8 The Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records by the Company under
Section 209 (1) (d) of the Companies Act, 1956, therefore
the provision of clause 4 (viii) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the company.

9 a. According to the records of the Company, it is regular
in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, investor
education and protection fund, employee’s state
insurance, income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, custom
duty, excise duty, cess and other applicable statutory
dues.

b. According to the information and explanations given
to us, there is no undisputed amount payable in

respect of income tax, wealth tax, sales tax, custom
duty, excise duty and cess as at the year end; for a
period more than six months from the date they
became payable.

c. According to the information and explanation given to
us, there are no dues of custom duty, wealth tax and
cess, which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.

10 The Company has not incurred cash losses during the
financial year under report.

11 The Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to
Financial Institutions and Banks. Further the Company
does not have any outstanding debentures.

12 The Company has not granted any loans and advances,
on the basis of security by way of pledge of shares,
debentures and other securities, during the year.

13 The Company is not a chit fund, nidhi or mutual benefit
fund/society. Therefore the provisions of clause 4(xiii) of
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) order, 2003 are not
applicable to the Company.

14 The company has not dealt or traded in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments during the year.

15 According to the information and explanation given to us,
the Company has not given any guarantee during the year,
for loans taken by others from Banks or other Financial
Institutions.

16 The Company has neither raised any term loan during the
year nor  any utilized amount was left on this account, as
at the beginning of the year. Therefore the provisions of
clause 4(xvi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,
2003 are not applicable to the Company.

17 According to the information and explanation given to us
and on all overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the
Company, we report that the funds raised on short-term
basis have not been used for long-term investment and
vice-versa.

18 The Company has not made any preferential allotment of
shares to any person during the year.

19 The Company does not have any outstanding debentures.
Therefore, the provision of clause 4(xix) of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 is not applicable to the
Company.

20 The Company has not raised any money by public issue
during the year.

21 To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to
the information and explanations given to us, no fraud on
or by the Company was noticed or reported during the
year.

For GAUTAM SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 011073N

Place : New Delhi Gautam Suri
Dated : May 20, 2010 Sole Proprietor

Membership No. 89819
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RAJDHANI TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2010
LIABILITIES 31.3.2010 31.3.2009

Rs. Rs.
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
10,000 (Previous year: 10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each 1,000,000 1,000,000
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
5,010 (Previous year: 5,010) Equity Shares of Rs.100/- each 501,000 501,000
CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
Current Liability

Liability for expenses 41,948 — 7,450
Provision 8,450 4,100

50,398
Provision for Income Tax 551,398 512,550

ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS (As per Schedule ‘A’ attached)
Gross block 50,136 50,136
Less: Depreciation 47,092 (46,601

————— 3,044
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Current Assets:

Cash in hand 3,970 4,900
Balance with scheduled banks on current account 49,161 2,071
Fixed Deposit Account 350,000 350,000

403,131
Loans & Advances:

Security Deposit 20,900 20,900
Tax Deducted at Source/Advance Tax 6,597 2,770
Interest Receivable 22,735 24,114

50,232
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(To the extent not written off or adjusted)
PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT 94,991 104,260
Notes to Accounts and Significant Accounting Policies as per Schedule ‘B’

551,398 512,550

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.

INCOME
Income from other sources 29,700 27,000
Interest on Fixed Deposit (TDS Rs 2,527/- Previous year 2,770/-) 29,090 26,884

58,790 53,884
EXPENSES

Audit fee 2,500 2,500
Rent paid 19,635 18,141
Discount & Bank Charges 2,193 183
Filing fee 900 2,000
Establishment Expenses 12,000 12,000
Legal & Professional Expenses 1,500 —
Repair & Maintinance 5,952 6,062
Depreciation 491 571

45,171 41,457
Profit for the year 13,619 12,427
Provision for Income Tax 4,350 4,100
Loss brought forward 104,260 112,587
Loss Carried Forward to Balance Sheet 94,991 104,260

In terms of our Report of even date
For GAUTAM SURI & CO.

Firm Registration No. 011073N
Chartered Accountants

Place : New Delhi Gautam Suri J.K. Gupta
Dated : May 20, 2010 Sole Proprietor Directors : Jitender Khanna

Membership No.89819 Satish Kapoor

)
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RAJDHANI TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

SCHEDULE ‘A’
FIXED ASSETS

ORIGINAL COST DEPRECIATION WRITTEN DOWN VALUE

Assets Sold Adjustm-
As on during As on As on  For the ents during Upto As on As on

1.4.2009 the year 31.3.2010 1.4.2009 year the year 31.3.2010 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
Air conditioners 40,186 — 40,186 37,142 423 — 37,565 2,621 3,044
Generators 9,950 — 9,950 9,459 68 — 9,527 423 491
Current year’s total 50,136 — 50,136 46,601 491 — 47,092 3,044 3,535
Previous year’s total 50,136 — 50,136 46,030 571 — 46,601 3,535 4,106

SCHEDULE ‘B’
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010
A. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These accounts have been prepared on historical cost convention and materially comply with the Accounting Standards
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
1. FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets are stated at cost (inclusive of cost of installation less depreciation).
2. DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is charged on written down value  basis in the manner and at the applicable rates prescribed in Schedule XIV
of the Companies Act, 1956.

B. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. All the equity shares are held by the Holding Company i.e. M/s JCT Limited &/or its nominee.
2. Previous year figures have been re-grouped wherever necessary so as to make them comparable with the figures of the

current year.
3. There was no amount due to any supplier as on 31.3.2010 and further there was no claim from suppliers for interest on

delayed payment under the "Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development Act, 2006".
4. In view of substantial carry forward losses and no business income for the current year and also due to uncertainty with

regard to future business income, the Company has not recorded cumulative deferred tax assets on accounting of
timing differences as stipulated in AS-22 "Accounting for Taxes on Income" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

5. Earning  per share (As per AS 20)
Current Year Previous Year

Net Profit/(Loss) as per Profit & Loss Account (Rs.) 9,269 8,327
Weighted Average Nos of Equity Shares
for Basic Profit/Loss 5,010 5,010
Weighted Average Nos of Equity Shares
for Diluted Profit/Loss 5,010 5,010
Nominal value of Equity Share (Rs.) 100 100
Basic Earning per Share (Rs.) 1.85 1.66
Diluted Earning per Share (Rs.) 1.85 1.66

C. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
1. Relationship

(a) Holding company: (c) Other related Parties:
JCT Limited Gupta & Syal Ltd.

(b) Key Management Personnel: Provestments Securities Pvt Ltd.
Mr. Satish Kapoor
Mr. J. K. Gupta
Mr. Jitendra Khanna

2. Details of the transaction carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business.
Nature of Nature of Name of the related Amount(Rs.)
Transaction relationship parties
A. Expenses/Income (during the year)

Income from other sources 1(a) JCT Limited 29,700
Establishment Expenses 1(a) JCT Limited 12,000

B. Balance outstanding as on 31.3.2010 Nil
NOTE : Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

D. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPHS (3) to (4D) OF PART II OF
SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956                Nil
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RAJDHANI TRADING COMPANY LIMITED

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

I. REGISTRATION DETAILS
Registration No. 29591
State Code 55
Balance Sheet date 31.3.2010

Rs.
II. CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR Nil

III. POSITION OF MOBILISATION & DEPLOYMENTS OF FUNDS
Total liabilities 551,398
Total assets 551,398

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Paid up capital 501,000
Reserves & surplus —
Secured loans —
Unsecured loans —

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Net fixed assets 3,044
Investments —
Net current assets 402,965
Misc. expenditure —
Accumulated losses 94,991

IV. PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY
Total income 58,790
Total expenditure 45,171
Profit before tax 13,619
Profit after tax 9,269
Earning per share in Rs. (weighted average) 1.85
Dividend rate % Nil

V. GENERAL NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPALS PRODUCTS/
SERVICES OF COMPANY (AS PER MONETARY TERMS)
Product description N.A.
Item Code No. N.A.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

Signatures to schedules 'A' & 'B'
forming part of the Balance sheet

For GAUTAM SURI & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 011073N J.K. Gupta
Place : New Delhi Gautam Suri Directors : Jitender Khanna
Dated : May 20, 2010 Proprietor Satish Kapoor

Membership No.89819
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
To the Members

GUPTA & SYAL LIMITED

AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members
1. We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of M/s Gupta

& Syal Limited, New Delhi as at 31st March, 2010 and also
the Profit & Loss Account for the year, ended on that date
annexed thereto. These financial statements are the
responsibil i ty of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing
standards generally accepted in India. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatements. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003,
as amended by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
(Amendment) Order, 2004, issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the
Companies Act, 1956, and on the basis of such checks of
the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations
given to us, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the
matters specified in the paragraphs 4 & 5 of the said Order.

4. We further report that :-
(a) We have obtained all the information and explanations

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by
law have been kept by the company so far as appears
from our examination of these books.

(c) The company’s Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss Account
dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books
of account.

(d) In our Opinion, the Balance Sheet and Profit & Loss
Account dealt with by this report, comply with the
Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of
section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from
directors, we report that none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2010 from being appointed
as director under Clause (g) of sub-section (1) of section
274 of the Companies Act, 1956.

(f) In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said
accounts read together with notes thereon given the
information required by the Companies Act, 1956 in the
manner so required and give a true and faire view :-
i. In the case of Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs

of the Company as at 31st March, 2010 and
ii. In the case of Profit & Loss Account, of the loss of

the Company for the year ended on that date.

For R.K.J.K. KHANNA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000033N
Place : New Delhi Vipin Bali
Dated : July 31, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 083436

Your Directors present their 80th Annual Report and Accounts for
the year ended on 31.3.2010.

Financial Results

The year under review ended with a profit of Rs. 1,96,203/- before
making a provision for income tax of Rs. 14,575/-.

Directors

Mr. Rajmohan Singh, Director retires by rotation and being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

Auditors

M/s. R. K. J. K. Khanna & Co., Chartered Accountants, the retiring
Auditors being eligible offer themselves for re-appointment. They
have furnished a certificate that their re-appointment, if made, would
be within the limits specified in Section 224(1B) of the Companies
Act, 1956.

Auditors Report

The observations made by the Auditors in their Report are adequately
explained in the notes to the Accounts and Significant Accounting
Policies and need no further elaboration.

Requirement under Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956
There are no employees who come under the purview of the
provisions of the Section 217(2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 read
under the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.
Directors’ Responsibility Statement
As required under Section 217 (2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956,
the Directors hereby confirm that:
(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed alongwith proper
explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) accounting policies selected were applied consistently and
judgments / estimates made that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

(iii) proper and sufficient care have been taken for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956  for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities;

(iv) annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern
basis.

For & on behalf of Board
Place : New Delhi Satish Kapoor
Dated : July 31, 2010 Director
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ANNEXURE TO THE AUDITORS' REPORT

GUPTA & SYAL LIMITED

1 The Company does not have any fixed assets. Therefore,
the paragraph 4(1) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

2 The Company during the year has not held any inventory.
Hence, paragraph 4(ii) of the order is not applicable to the
Company.

3 The Company has not granted or taken any loan, secured or
unsecured to/from a company, firm or a party listed in the
register maintained u/s 301 of the Companies Act, 1956 or to
/from any other party/ firm or company. Hence paragraph 4(ii)
of the order is not applicable to the Company. However to
meet operating expenses the company had in earlier years
taken from time to time interest free amounts from holding
company which is being reflected in current liabilities. Total
amount due to holding company is Rs.36 lacs.

4 Paragraph (iv) of the Order regarding Internal Control
procedures is not applicable to the company, as the company
during the year has not made purchase or inventory, fixed
assets or sale of good.

5 (a) According to information & explanations given to us and
as per records produced before us, the transactions
required to be entered into a register in pursuance of
Section 301 of the Act, have been so entered.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us,
the transactions of purchases / sale of goods, material
and services in pursuance of contracts with parties
covered in register under section 301 of the Companies
Act, 1956 have been made at prices which are
reasonable having regards to prevailing price at the
relevant time.

6 According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not accepted any deposit from the public
during the year under consideration. Therefore, the paragraph
4 (vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

7. Paragraph (vii) of the Order regarding Internal Audit is not
applicable to the Company as the Company does not have
turnover exceeding Rs.5 Crore or paid up share capital and
reserves exceeding Rs.50 lakhs.

8. The Company is not required to maintain cost records u/s
209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956.

9. (a) According to information and explanations given to us
and as per records produced before us for verification,
the Company is regular in depositing statutory dues
including income tax, etc. As per information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed statutory dues
are outstanding as at 31st March, 2010, for a period
exceeding six months from the date they became
payable.

(b) As per information and explanations furnished to us
and on verification of records produced before us, we
report that the company has no pending dispute in

respect of statutory liabilities referred to in clause (ix) (b)
of the Order.

10 The company has not incurred cash losses in the current
financial year or in immediately preceding financial year.
However, as at 31.3.2010 it’s entire net worth was eroded on
account of accumulated losses.

11 In our opinion and on verification of records, we report that
the company has not taken any loan from a financial
institution or bank and has not issued any debenture.

12 In Our opinion and according to explanations given to us
and as per verification of records, the company has not
granted any loan or advance on the basis of security by way
of pledge of shares, debentures and other securities.
However the leasehold land is mortgaged by deposit of title
deed with a schedule bank to secure the financial facility
granted by a scheduled bank to the holding company.

13 In our opinion the provisions of any special statute applicable
to chit fund / nidhi / mutual benefit funds / societies are not
applicable to the company.

14 The company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments.

15 As per information and explanations given to us, the company
has not given any guarantee for loan taken by others from
banks and financial institutions during the year.

16 The Company has not taken any term loan during the year.

17 In our opinion and according to the explanations given to us,
the company during the period under consideration has not
raised any fund on short term basis.

18 The company has not made any preferential allotment of
shares during the year to parties covered under section 301
of the Companies Act, 1956.

19 The company during the year has not issued any debentures.

20 The company during the year has not raised any money by
issue of shares.

21 During the course of our examination of the books and records
of the Company carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company
noticed or reported during the year nor have we been informed
of such case by the management.

For R.K.J.K. KHANNA & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000033N

Place : New Delhi Vipin Bali

Dated : July 31, 2010 Partner

Membership No. 083436

Referred to in the Paragraph 3 of our report of even date
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GUPTA & SYAL LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2010

LIABILITIES 31.3.2010 31.3.2009

Rs. Rs.
SHARE CAPITAL
AUTHORISED
3,50,000 (Previous year : 3,50,000) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 3,500,000 3,500,000

10,000 (Previous year : 10,000 ) Preference Shares of Rs 100/- each 1,000,000 1,000,000

4,500,000 4,500,000
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
82,320 (Previous year : 82,320) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 823,200 823,200

RESERVE & SURPLUS
As per last Balance Sheet 227,000 227,000

1,050,200 1,050,200

ASSETS

INVESTMENTS (At cost)
Building on leasehold land (including cost of land) 545,100 545,100
HDFC Prudence Mutual Fund-Growth (At cost)
(2956.896 units) (Market Value Rs. 5,38,309/-
previous year: Rs. 2,70,479/-) 400,000 270,479

945,100 815,579
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
(As per Schedule 'A') 226,019 222,934

CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS
(As per Schedule 'B') 4,122,846 4,171,868

NET CURRENT ASSETS (3,896,827 (3,948,934

MISC. EXPENDITURE
(To the extent not written off/adjusted)

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
Opening Balance 4,183,555 4,123,060
Less: Profit/(Loss)Transfer from Profit And Loss Account 181,628 (60,495)

4,001,927 4,183,555

1,050,200 1,050,200

AUDITORS’ REPORT
As per our seperate Report of even date

For R.K.J.K. KHANNA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000033N

Vipin Bali Directors : Sanjiva Jain
Place : New Delhi Partner Satish Kapoor
Dated : July 31, 2010 Membership No. 083436

) )
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PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

Particulars Current ` Previous
Year Year

Rs. Rs.
INCOME

Profit on sale of Investment — 22,566
Rent received 90,000 90,000

90,000 112,566
EXPENSES

Discount and bank charges 306 90
Filing fee 1,594 6,567
Rates and taxes 9,166 6,160
Insurance 1,765 —
Payment to auditors:

Audit Fee 5,515 5,515
Legal & Professional Expenses 2,000 10,080
Depreciation on building 2,972 3,128
Provision made/(written back) for Diminution in the value
of Investment (129,521) 129,521

(106,203) 161,061

Profit/(Loss) for the year 196,203 (48,495)
Provision for income tax

Current year 16,000 12,000
Previous years (1,425) —

14,575 12,000

Profit/(Loss) Carried to Balance Sheet 181,628 (60,495)

AUDITORS’ REPORT
As per our seperate Report of even date

For R.K.J.K. KHANNA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000033N

Vipin Bali Directors : Sanjiva Jain
Place : New Delhi Partner Satish Kapoor
Dated : July 31, 2010 Membership No. 083436

GUPTA & SYAL LIMITED
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GUPTA & SYAL LIMITED

SCHEDULE ‘C’
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES ON
ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010
I. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1. In accordance with the practice consistently followed by the Company no depreciation had been provided on the Building
held as an Investments Property as defined in the Accounting  Standard “Accounting for Investments“ (AS 13) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants  of  India. The said Investment is considered to be long term Investments and is
at  cost as having regard to its current market value, there is no permanent diminution in its value

2. However in the course of an inspection of the Company’s books and records conducted by the Department of Company
Affairs, Kanpur u/s 209 A of the Companies Act,1956, a query has been raised as to why depreciation should not be
provided on building. Therefore, without prejudice to the submission made in sub para (1) above and as a matter of
abundant caution and based on professional advice received by the Company, provision for depreciation @ 5% on
written down value basis has been made in accounts

3. Investment in Mutual Fund are shown at cost or NAV whichever is lower and provision for diminution in the value of such
investment is made in the books of Accounts wherever is applicable.

II. NOTES ON ACCOUNTS
1. All the equity Shares are held by the Holding Company i.e. M/s JCT Limited and/ its nominee.
2. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped, wherever necessary, so as to make them comparable with the figures of

the current year.

SCHEDULES A TO C FORMING PART OF THE
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2010
SCHEDULE 'A' 31.3.2010 31.3.2009
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES Rs. Rs.

(A) CURRENT ASSETS
Cash in hand 2,013 3,637
Cheques in hand 10,000 —
Balance at bank with scheduled bank 128,847 108,945

140,860 112,582
(B) LOANS & ADVANCES

Advance to be recived in cash or in kind
or value to be received (considered good)
Prepaid Expenses 882 —
Security deposit 57,340 57,340
Advance tax 26,937 53,012

85,159 110,352

226,019 222,934

SCHEDULE 'B'
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

(A) CURRENT LIABILITIES
Due to holding Company 3,600,000 3,600,000
Expenses payable 6,209 38,203

3,606,209 3,638,203

(B) PROVISIONS
Provision for depreciation 488,637 485,665
Provision for income tax 28,000 48,000

516,637 533,665

4,122,846 4,171,868
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3. There was no amount due to any supplier as on 31.3.2010 and further there was no claim from supplier for interest on
delayed payment under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act 2006"

4. The Company has no expenses which attract deferred tax on account of timing differences as stipulated in AS-22
“Accounting for taxes on Income" issued by the "Institute of Chartered Accountants of India".

5. The building on the leasehold Land is mortgaged by deposit of the Title Deed with a Scheduled Bank to secure the
Financial facility granted by them to the Holding Company

6. Earning per share (As per AS 20) :
Current Year Previous Year

Net Profit as per Profit & Loss Accounts (Rs.) 181.628 (60,495)
Weighted Average Nos. of Equity Shares for Basic Profit 82,320 82,320
Weighted Average Nos. of Equity Shares for Diluted Profit 82,320 82,320
Nominal value of Equity Share (Rs.) 10 10
Basic Earning per Share (Rs.) 2.21 (0.73)
Diluted Earning per Share (Rs.) 2.21 (0.73)

III. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
1. Relationship

(a) Holding company:
JCT Limited

(b) Key Management Personnel:
Mr. Rajmohan Singh
Mr. Sanjiva Jain
Mr. Satish Kapoor

(c) Other related Parties:
Rajdhani Trading Company Ltd.
Provestments Securities Pvt. Ltd.

2. Details of the transaction carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business:

Nature of Nature of Name of the Amount (Rs.)
Transaction relationship related parties

A. Income/Expenditure (during the year)
Rent received  1(a) JCT Limited 60,000

B. Balance outstanding as on 31.3.2010
Loan taken  1(a) JCT Limited 3,600,000

NOTE : Related party relationship is as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors.

IV. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PARAGRAPHS (3) TO (4D) OF PART II OF
SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956         Nil

Signatures to Schedules 'A' to 'C' forming part of the Balance Sheet

AUDITORS’ REPORT
As per our seperate Report of even date

For R.K.J.K. KHANNA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000033N

Vipin Bali Directors : Sanjiva Jain
Place : New Delhi Partner Satish Kapoor
Dated: July 31, 2010 Membership No. 083436

GUPTA & SYAL LIMITED
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GUPTA & SYAL LIMITED

INFORMATION PURSUANT TO PART IV OF SCHEDULE VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956
BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY’S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE

I. REGISTRATION DETAILS
Registration No 224
State Code 55
Balance Sheet Date 31.3.2010

Rs. 
II. CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR Nil

III. POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS
Total liabilities 1,050,200
Total assets 1,050,200

SOURCES OF FUNDS
Paid up capital 823,200
Reserves & surplus 227,000
Secured loans Nil
Unsecured loans Nil
Current liabilities & provisions 4,122,846

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Net fixed assets —
Investments 945,100
Loans & Advances 85,159
Current assets 140,860
Misc. expenditure —
Accumulated losses 4,001,927

IV. PERFORMANCE OF COMPANY
Total income 90,000
Total expenditure (106,203)
Profit before tax 196,203
Profit after tax 181,628
Earning per share (weighted average) 2.21
Dividend rate % Nil

V. GENERAL NAMES OF THREE PRINCIPALS PRODUCTS/
SERVICES OF COMPANY (AS PER MONETARY TERMS)
Product Description Owns property
Item Code No. N.A.

AUDITORS’ REPORT
As per our seperate Report of even date

For R.K.J.K. KHANNA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000033N

Vipin Bali Directors : Sanjiva Jain
Place : New Delhi Partner Satish Kapoor
Dated: July 31, 2010 Membership No. 083436




